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Today

Carillion is one of the UK's
leading construction to
services companies

Tomorrow

Our vision is to be a company
renowned for working in a

spirit of openness, collaboration
and mutual dependency to
ensure that our customers’
success becomes our success




Chairman’s Statement

A vision and strategy delivering profitable
growth, improved financial returns and

enhanced value for shareholders
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Chairman’s Statement

In 2001, Carillion’s new senior
management team made substantial
progress with the Group's strategy for
growing visible and predictable earnings
through developing our growth sectors
of Public Private Partnerships (PPF),
Infrastructure Management and Facilities
Management services, while continuing
to focus selectively on higher value-added
work in construction.

The acquisition of GT Railway Maintenance
Holdings Limited, the signing of a £500
miliion contract to provide facilities
management services to BT and the
continued development of our portfolio

of PPP projects, were particular highlights.
These successes not only contributed to
improved finandal performance in 2001, but
strengthened the foundations for further
sustainable success in 2002 and beyond.

in order to brin% greater clarity and
consistency to the way we report our
results and to assist sharehalders in
understanding the origin and quality of our
earnings, we are now reporting our resuits
in three segments: Investments, Business
Services and Construction Services.

Financial Performance

Although turnover was broadly unchanged
at £1.9 billion, profit before tax and
exceptional items increased by 8 per cent
to £45.1 millien, of which over 60 per cent
came from our Investments and Business
Services activities. As indicated at the half
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ﬁear, an exceptional charge of £10.1 million
as been taken, largely to meet the costs
of restructuring as a result of the major
Business Improvernent Programme launched
during the year by our new Chief Executive.

A continuing focus on cash management
resulted in positive Group net interest,
excluding interest payable on debt
associated with our expanding portfolic
of PPP projects. Furthermore, strong

cash flow from operating activities
resulted in net cash at 31 December 2001
of £51.6 million (2000 £50.8 million),
after investing £34.5 million in the
purchase of GT Railway Maintenance,
£17.6 million in PPP concessions and the
receipt of £5.3 million from the sale of
Carillion Housing.

As a result of the Group’s financial
performance and the positive outlook and
prospects for sustainable profitable growth
in 2002, the Board is recommending the
payment of a final dividend of 3.02 pence,
making the total for the year of 4.4 pence,
a 7 per cent increase on 2000. The final
dividend will be paid on 28 June to
shareholders on the register at close

of business on 3 May. A Dividend
Reinvestment Plan will also be offered.

Order Book

The success of our strategy continues to
be reflected in the size and length of our
record £5.2 billion order baok, which has
increased by around 30 per cent since

03

Total turnover Pre-tax profit

Pre-exceptional items

£18898m  £451m

1999 £1,802.3m

1999 £351m
2000 £41.9m
2007 £45.1m

Record order book

- £5.2bn

2001 £1,889.8m

Full year dividend per share

4.4 pence

2001 4.4 pence [l 2001 £5.2 billion

Senior Nen-Executive Director and
Deputy Chairman, and Alan Coppin,
Non-Executive Director, both retired in
December. OQur Company Secretary, Dirk
FitzHugh, also retired during the year. Gn
behalf of the Board, | should like to thank
them all for the valuable contributions they
have made to Carillion’s success. Richard
Tapp has been appointed Company
Secretary and we are delighted to
welcome him to the Group.

31 Cecember 2000. Significantly, 83 per
cent af the order book is in our growth
segments of investments and Business
Services and 75 per cent is for 2003
and beyond.

Corporate Responsibility

Carillion continues to be an industry leader
in Health and Safety and in seeking to
improve the Environmental and Social
aspects of our performance, on which

we shall be reporting separately in our
Sustainability Report. We believe that

the emphasis we place on Sustainability
differentiates us from our competitors and
will play an increasingly important role in
the long-term success of our business,

Outlook and Prospects.

| am pleased to report that the outlook
for Carillion is encouraging. The size and
quality of our order baok continues to
improve. We have leading positions in
all our main markets, which, overail, are
expected to grow. Therefore, with the
henefits of our Business Improvement
Programme yet to come, the Group

is in a good position to deliver further
sustainable profitable growth in 2002
and beyond.

Business Improvement

During the year our new senior
management team launched a major
Business Improvement Programme aimed
at improving the way we live up to our
core Values and the efficiency and
effectiveness of service delivery to our
customers. This has involved extensive
changes to the way we do business and

it is testimony to the enthusiastic response
and commitment of our employees that
we are on course to deliver in full the
objectives and benefits of this programme
over the next two years.

Sir Neville Simms
Chairman

13 March 2002
Board Membership

Executive Directors Euan McEwan and

John Sharples resigned in May and

September, respectively. Roger Brooke,
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The Board of Directors 01 Sir Neville Simms
Non-Executive Chairman, age 57
Appointed to the Board in May 1999, Sir
Neville is Chairman of the Nominations
Committee and became a member of the
Audit Committee in February 2001. He
has spent his career in the construction
industry having originally joined Tarmac
in 1970 becoming Chiet Executive in
1992 and Deputy Chairman in 1994,
He was, until March 1999 a member
of the Private Finance Panel and until
June 1999, Chairman of the Major
Contractors Group. Sir Neville is currently
Chairman of International Power plc and
a Member of the Court of the Bank of
England. He is a Chartered Engineer.

02 John McDonough

Chief Executive, age 50

Appointed to the Board in January

2001, John was formerly Vice President,
Integrated Facilities Managernent,

Europe, the Middle East and Africa

of Johnson Controls Inc. In this role he led
the development of integrated facilities
management including involvernent in
private finance projects and in the frovision
of a range of integrated soluticns far the
outsourcing market.

A team with experience and industry
knowledge to deliver our strategy

01 Sir Neville Simms

02 John McDoncugh

03 Chris Girling

04 Roger Robinson

05 Roger Dickens CBE DL
06 Jean-Paul Parayre

07 Andrew Parrish
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03 Chris Girling

Finance Director, age 48

Appointed to the Board in November 1999,
Chris was previously Group Finance Director
of Vosper Thornycroft Holdings plc. He is

a Chartered Accountant and has a MBA.,

04 Roger Robinson

Executive Director, responsible for
Operations, age 50

Appointed to the Board in May 1999,
Roger joined Tarmac Construction

as Contracts Director in 1989 and
subsequently in 1996 became
Managing Director of Tarmac Civil
Engineering International and Rail.
He is a Chartered Engineer.

05 Roger Dickens

Non-Executive Director, age 54
Appointed to the Board in May 2000
Roger is Chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the
Remuneration and Nominations
Committees. Roger is Chairman

of iISOFT Group PLC and West
Bromwich Building Society and a
Director of Birmingham Economic
Development Partnership Limited and
NEC Group Limited.

'
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06 Jean-Paul Parayre

Senior Non-Executive Director, age 64
Jean-Paul is the Senicr Non-Executive
Director whe was appointed to the
Board in May 1999. He is a member
of the Audit, Remuneration and
Neminations Committees. Jean-Paul
is also Chairman of Vallourec SA.,

a Director of Bollore investissement,
Stena UK, Stena Line and a Supervisory
Board member of Peugeot S.A.

(7 Andrew Parrish

Non-Executive Director, age 556

Andrew joined the Board in March
2000 as a Nen-Executive Director and is
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Audit and
Nominations Committees. He was
previously Group Chief Executive of
Senior pic and is a member of the

CBi's Manufacturing Council. Andrew
is a Chartered Engineer.

The Board of Directors

fn addition, the foHowintr; two Directors
served during 20071 until they stood
down on 31 December 2001;

Roger Brooke

Age 71

Roger joined the Board in May 1999

and was Deputy Chairman, Senior
Nen-Executive Birector, Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit and Nominations Committees.
He is Chairman of Accord ple, innisfree
Limited and Advent 2 VCT plc.

Alan Coppin

Age 51

Alan was appointed to the Board in
June 1999 and served on the Audit,
Remuneration and Nominations
Committees. He is Chief Executive of
Historic Royal Palaces and a Director
of Expocentric plc and Protocol
Asscciates N.V.
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Carillion at a glance Investments
Our core operations Refer to page 16

Our three new reporting segments — Equity returns on investments in
Investments, Business Services and Construction  Public Private Partnership projects
Services — make our strategic progress more

visible and bring greater clarity and consistency

to the way we report our results, because all

activities of a similar nature are now reported

in the same segment

£f43.9m

Turnover (2000: £25.8m)

£5.5m

Operating Profit (2000: £4.9m)

Operating Profit Segment highlights

(Before excepticnal items)

» ru 0,
1 Investments 11% Turnover up 70%

2 Business Services 56% * 16 financially closed projects: 11 operating successfully
3 Construction Services 33% and construction of the other five progressing well

= Committed equity investment up from £30m to £45m

= Creating a valuable portfolio of projects to deliver more
predictable long-term earnings

Total £48.4m

Investments

Carillion is an equity partner in the Special Purpose
Company formed to finance, design, build and operate
the 400-bed Darent Valley Hospital, in Kent, over a 25-year
concession period. Carillion Building was responsible for
the construction of the hospital and Carillion Services is
providing facilities management services.

06 Carillion at a glance Annual Report & Accounts 2001




Business Services
Refer to page 18

Construction Services
Refer to page 20

Rail and road infrastructure services, facilities
management and support services, inctuding
those refating to Public Private Partnerships

£609.3m

Turnover (2000: £524.9m)

All contracting and related activities, including
mechanical and electrical engineering, in
building and infrastructure, both on traditional
and Public Private Partnership projects

£1,335.9m

Turnover (2000: £1,487.5m)

£29.8m

Operating Profit before exceptional items (2000: £22.8m)

Segment highlights

£22.3m

Operating Profit before exceptional items (2000: £25.7m)

Segment highlights

* Turnover up 16%, continuing strong year on year
growth

» Operating profit before exceptional items up 30%

* Acquisition of GT Railway Maintenance completed
successfully

» £500m facilities management contract signed and
performing well

» Turnover reduced by 10% due to disposal of
Carillon Housing and continuing project selectivity

* Underlying margins (before net bid costs on
Public Private Partnership projects) improved from
1.9% to 2.4%

* All major projects on schedule or ahead of schedule

Business Services

in September 2001 we purchased the remaining 51 per
cent of GT Railway Maintenance to become sole owner
of one of Britain’s leading rail maintenance companies.

Construction Services

Carillion companies are working with BAA on projects

at Heathrow, Stansted, Southampton, Glasgow and Edinburgh.
TPS Consult is a member of the design team working on the
Terminal Five project at Heathrow, whilst Crown House
Engineering is a framework contractor for mechanical and
electrical services at BAA airports around the UK.

07 Carillien at a glance
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Chief Executive's Review

A restructured business embracing
a new culture for growth and success

In 2001, we made further progress with our
strategg for growing good quality earnings
through changing the Group’s business mix,
increasing efficiency and strengthening our
focus on delivering solutions that exceed
our customers’ expectations.

This progress is evident in our improved
financial performance, our leading
positions in all our main markets, which are
growing or firm, and our record order book
that put us in a strong position to deliver
more predictable long-term earrings.

Our new reporting segments will make
our strategic progress more visible and
bring greater clarity and cansistency to
the way we repart our financial resuits,

as all activities of a similar nature are now
reported in the same segment. The new
segments are:

Investments - the equity returns on our
(nvestments in Public Private Partnership
projects.

Business Services — rail and road
infrastructure services, facilities
management and support services,
including Public Private Partnership
projects.

Construction Services ~ all contracting
and related activities, including mechanical
and electrical engineering, in building and
infrastructure, both on traditional and
Public Private Partnership projects.
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Strategic progress

Through organic growth and acquisition
we have accelerated the development
of our Private Finance and Business
Services activities, which generated
over 60 per cent of the Group’s profit
before tax, exceeding our initial target
of 50 per cent.

In March, we signed a five-year contract
waorth over £500 million to provide
facilities management services to BT,
This ground-breaking contract is the
largest FM contract to be awarded by
the private sector in the UK to date
and is therefore a major addition to
our Business Services activities, where
the compound annual growth rate in
turnover has been over 10 per cent for
the last five years.

Consistent with adopting a more selective
approach in Construction Services, we
sold our social housing business in July
2001 for £5.3 million.

In September 2007, we purchased the
remaining 51 per cent of GT Railway
Maintenance for £34.5 million, to become
the sole owner of one of the UK’s leading
rail maintenance compantes. This not only
strengthened our position in the growing
rail maintenance market, but ena%led us
to bring all our sail activities together into
one business, releasing synergies and
improving our ability to offer fully
integrated solutions.

Chief Executive's Review

In Construction Services, we have
continued to target higher added-value
work in our chosen market sectors.

For example, arcund 80 per cent of
turnover in Building and Infrastructure
Projects in this segment came from

20 key customers. QOur more selective
approach, together with improved risk
management, has continued to generate
better quality earnings.

We are using the leading positions we
have n all our markets to promote our
fuli range of services and our ahility to
offer integrated solutions ~ from project
finance, through design, construction

and maintenance to facilities management
and support services — a capability that
underpins our success in delivering

Public Private Partnership projects on

time and to budget,

We have increased our order book to a
new record level of £5.2 billion, most of
which relates to longer-term contracts in
Business Services and Investments.

Financial performance

A stronger second-half performance
increased fuil year profit before exceptional
items and tax by 8 per cent, The quality of
our earnings also continued to improve as
a result of our strategic progress coupled
with strong cash management. Group net
interest was positive, excluding interest
payable on debt associated with our
portfolio of PPP projects of £3.4 million.
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Net cash at the year end was broadly
unchanged at £51.6 million, despite
sifgnificant investment in the development
of the business, including the purchase of
GT Railway Maintenance and equity
investments in PPP projects, totalling
£52.1 million.

Adding to our portfolio of sixteen
financially closed PPP projects has
continued to be a key part of our strategy
for long-term, quality earnings growth.
Our committed equity investment in
these projects increased from £30 million
to £45 million in 2001. Although the net
cost of bidding for a growing number

of PPP projects increased substantially

in 2001, this increase was more than
offset by improved performances in a
number of our businesses, including
Building Developments, Rail and
Facilities Management.

Pensions

The 2001 Annual Report and Accounts
includes the disclosures required under
FRS 17 {see Note 30 on pages 71 and
72) which will be fully implemented for
the year ending 31 December 2003
when defined %eneﬁt pension scheme
surpluses or deficits will be recognised
in the employer’s balance sheet,” At 31
December 2001, the various defined
benefit schemes operated by Carillion
had assets of £881 million with a
surplus of £85 million, both valued on
an FRS 17 basis.
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Pre-tax profit

{before exceptional items)

1 Investments £1.9m {4 %)
2 Business Services £27.0m (60%)
3 Construction Services £16.2m (36%)

Total £45.1m

Order book

1 Investments £1.7bn (33%)
2 Business Services £2.6bn (50%)
3 Construction Services £0.9bn {17 %)

Total £5.2bn

Management

In May 2001, we restructured our senior
manragement team, including a recuction
in the number of Executive Directors from
five to three and the intraduction of a
flatter and more efficient structure. We also
launched a major Business Improvement
Programme during the year that is on
course ta deliver significant benefits;

these include driving forward the cultural
changes necessary to "live” our core Values
and deliver solutions that consistently
exceed our customers' expectations, as well
as reducing costs and increasing efficiency.

As indicated at the half year, an
exceptional charge of £10.1 million has
been taken, £8,9 million of which was
needed to meet the costs of restructuring
arising from our Business Improvement
Programme. In 2002, the savings from this
programme will be largely reinvested in
upgrading our Information and Knowledge
Management Systems, which will play a
major role in improving efficiency and the
quality of service delivery. In addition, a
charge of £1.2 million has been taken for
restructuring our joint venture plant hire
company Maxxiom.

Health and Safety

In Health and Safety we have continued
to improve our own performance as well
as working with other companies and
stakeholders to help improve the averall
performance of our industry. Improving
our Health and Safety performance is one

Chief Executive’s Review

of our key strategic objectives. Responsibility
for this rests at main Board level and is
exercised through our Safety Policy and
integrated management system, based on
a Total Quality Management approach, in
order to ensure that Health and Safety is a
priority for every employee.

Sustainability

We continue to be the leader in our sector
in targeting, monitoring, measuring and
reporting the environmental and social
aspects of our performance and how
they can affect our financial performance.
In 2001, Carillion was selected for
membership of FTSE 4 Good, an index

of leading companies doing the most to
take account of social responsibility and
sustainable development. We believe that
this is making an increasingly significant
contributicn to delivering sustainable,
prefitable growth, through offering
customers solutions that incorporate

best environmental and social practice
and minimise the whole-life costs of the
services we provide.

John McDonough
Chief Executive
13 March 2002
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Carillion today

Hospital sisters Shelly Knight and Kelly
Graham test one of the ward mock-ups

at the new Great Western Hospital, in
Swindon, where Carillion is an equity
partrer in the 30-year PPP project. Carillion
companies have been responsible for the
design and construction of the hospital,
where Carillion Services will provide
facilities management.

Highway Maintenance crewman Andy Carrol
in action at an incident on the M25, where
Carillion is responsible for maintaining the
whole length of the motorway. In total we
maintain around a guarter of the motorway
and trunk road network in England.

Continuing growth in these segments is generating
more predictable long-term earnings.
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Carillion

Cariilion 1s the UK market leader in
commercial building. We continue to focus
selectively on higher value-added contracts
for long-term key customers, primarily in
the office and retail sectors.

Our retail dient base includes most

of the prime store grocups, many of whom
value our strong design and construction
capability to fast-track new stores

to market,

Providing
Integrated
Solutions

A strong construction capability means we can provide
a fully integrated service, from project finance through
design and construction to whole-life asset

management and operation.
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Carillion today
Today for tomorrow
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Cne of our key objectives is to attract,
develep and retain excellent people. Every
rmanager identifies the learning needs of
their team and develops each member
accordingly, to the benetit of our people
and our customers.

Qur ‘Learning Works' training centre

is core 1o our Business Improverment
Programme. Last year over 3,000 staff
attended courses at the centre, which
guarantees easy access to quality training
for all our people.

Creating
a culture
for success

Learning to ‘live” our Values of Openness,
Collaboration, Mutual Dependency, Professional
Delivery, Sustainable Profitable Growth and Innovation
is essential to the successful delivery of our strategy.

Cariliion today
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Operational Review

investments
2001 2000
Turnover £f43.9m  £25.8m
Operating profit ~ £5.5m £4.9m

The results in this segment reflect the
equity returns from our investments in PPP
projects. They do not include profits from
the canstruction and facilities management
of these projects that are now reported in
our Construction Services and Business
Services segments, respectively.

Our success in delivering PPP projects is
based an our ability to offer integrated
solutions, from project finance threugh
design and construction to maintenance
and facilities management, that minimise
the whole-life costs of providing high
quality services. We have extended our
portfolic of financially-closed projects to
16, 11 of which are now fully cperational
with construction of the remaining five
progressing well. This growing and
maturing pertfolio is generating more
predictable, long-term earnings.

Turnover increased by 70 per cent as a
result of four more projects moving
successfully from construction to operation,
the point at which we begin to receive
payments from our customers for the
services we provide and profit on our equity
investments begins to accrue. However, the
benefit of this increase in turnover is not
vet fully reflected in operating profit and
margins, because the net cost of bidding
for a growing number of projects also
increased significantly. Going forward,

we expect to accelerate profit growth as
investment revenues increase.

We achieved financial close on our
fifteenth project, Manchester Magistrates’
Court, worth £30 million, and we were
selected as the preferred bidder for a
project to provide accommodation and
sports facilities for the University of
Hertfordshire — a £190 million project,
which reached financial close in February
2002. Our committed equity investment
in PPP projects rose during 2001 from
£30 million to £45 million, In addition to
the investment made in the Manchester
Magistrates’ Court project on reaching
financial close, we have purchased
additional equity from our partners in two
operational road projects, the M40 and
A55. We have also made further scheduled
investments in financially closed projects
on completion of the construction phase.

16 finandially closed projects:
Fully operational
* M40 Motorwa
* AS5 North Wares
* HM Prison Altcourse
* HM Prison Rye Hill
« Rainsbrook Secure Training Centre
* Medway Secure Training Centre
» Avery Hill Student Accemmodation
* Derwent Hospital
* Darent Valley Hospital

Qur skills in providing innovative PPP solutions have
helped create a state-of-the-art Acute Psychiatric Unit

at Harplands Hospital in North Staffordshire. The design
encampasses the specific needs of the clinicians and
support services management to provide a domestic,
flexible arrangement that will significantly improve care
of the 148 patients, reducing in-patient time and thereby
allowing increased numbers of patients to be treated,

e Operational Review: Investments

Carillion and its pariner have created

a new dual carriageway across the
island of Anglesey in North Wales.
After upgrading the existing A55,
which is a key link with Ireland,
through the port of Holyhead, the
Speciai Purpose Company will maintain
the new ALS over a 27-year period.

Annual Repert & Accounts 2001




+ Harplands Hospital
» Glasgow Southern General Hospital
{Medicine for the Elderly Unit)

Under Canstruction
* New Accommodation Project,
GCHQ Cheltenham
» Great Western Hospital, Swindon
*» Nottingham Express Transit
» Manchester Magistrates Court
» University of Hertfordshire

Future turnover frem our equity
investments in the 16 projects we have
financially closed to date is estimated to
be around £1.73 billion, which represents
some 33 per cent of cur total order book.

We are also currently shortlisted for 15
further projects with an estimated value
of some £3 billion, particularly in the
fransport, health, secure establishments
and defence sectors, where there is
growing demand as the Government
expands its PPP programmes. Interest

in PPP projects in our International Regions
has also continued to grow and the
projects for which we are currently
shortlisted include three toll roads in the
Repubtic of Ireland and the Triservices
Defence College in Oman.

As four more PPP projects moved
successhully into the operational phase

in 2001, Carillion and its joint venture
partners are deilvering on time the high
quality services our customers expect.

HM Prison Rye Hill

Rye Hill, our second PPP prison, is a
25-year concession to build a 600-place
Category B prison and to operate the
facility over the life of the concession.
Built by Cariflion, the new £38 million
prison opened on time in January 2001
and set new standards in design, cost
effectiveness and prisoner management.
Rye Hill also received the UK's "Most
Considerate Site’ award, in recognition
of the outstanding levels of care and site

management adopted during construction,

A55 North Wales

The ASS5, the first trunk road to be built
in Wales under the Government’s Public
Private Partnership Programme, is our
second PPP highways project, This is a
27-year concession for the construction
and operation of 35 km of new dual
carriageway acress Anglesey, Built by
Carillicn and its consortium partner,
the £100 million new road opened o
traffic ahead of schedule in March 2001
and is now maintained and operated
by the consortium. Considerable
attention was paid to the design to
ensure that the road blends well with
the environment. The good working

relationships established with local
community groups helped to minimise
disruption during construction and
mitigate environmental impacts and
win a Considerate Constructor Award,

Glasgow Southern General Hospital
This was the third of our four PPP hospitals
and is a 27-year concessicn for the
constructicn of a 210 bed Medicine for
the Elgerly Unit and the provision of non-
clinical facilities management services. The
£9 million Unit was designed and built by
Carillicn and opened ahead of schedule,
Carillion is also providing non-clinical services
for the new hospital, which is operating
successfully, serving patients in South West
Glasgow:. Signed on the first day of the
new Scottish Parliament in July 1299, it was
the first PPP Unit of its kind in Scotland.

Harplands Hospital

This 29-year concession is for a new

£17 million Acute Psychiatric Unit in North
Staffordshire which has replaced outdated
Victorian buildings. Carillion designed and
built the new Unit, which opened on time
in August 2001, and is now supplying
non-clinical facilities management services.
The innovative design, tailored to meet the
specific needs of clinicians and support
services managers, enables the new Unit
to provide state-of-the-art patient care in
a flexible, non-institutional environment.

Our joint venture partnership is a teader in the
provision of secure establishments. HMP Rye
Hill is a 600-place Categery B prison designed
and built by Carillion and completed in just
18 months.

The Nottingham Express Transit wil! transform
transportation in and around the city. The

£200 million PPP scheme utilises the pathway
cf the existing Robin Hood railway line for part
of its route before moving onto the streets of
Nottingham. A key feature of the scheme is
the integration of bus and tram services along
the route, with buses feeding passengers to tram

stops. Carilion is a member of the Arrow
consortium, the Special Purpose Company
responsitle for the design and construction
of the new system and its maintenance and
operation over the 30-year concession.

Operational Review: Investments
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Operational Review
Business Services

2001 2000
Turnaver £609.3m £524.9m
Operating profit* £29.8m  £22.8m
Margin 49% 43%

* Before exceptional items

In this segment we report the results of
our facilittes management, support services
and infrastructure services businesses.

Growth in facifities management, primarily
as a result of Monteray's contract with BT,
and in rail infrastructure services, resulted
in a 16 per cent increase in turnover

in this segment. Operating profit before
exceptional items rose by over 30 per cent,
with margins increasing to 4.9 per cent,

as a result of this growth and improved
operating performances,

Qur success in this segment continues
to be driven by a total commitment to
exceeding our customers’ expectations
through the highest standards of safety,
quality and service delivery.

Facilities Management and

Support Services

Carillion Services had a very successful
year, securing a number of new contracts
and almost doubling its turnover.
Monteray, a company 51 per cent
owned and led by Carillion, signed the
largest ever private sector outsourcing
contract in March 2001. Under this
five-year contract with BT, worth over
£500 million, Monteray is now successfully
providing a wide range of property and
facilities management services to around
8,000 BT properties.

Carillion Services also consolidated its
position in other key markets, securing
new contracts for the provision of non-
clinical FM services for two new hospitals -
Glasgow Southern General and Princess
Margaret Hospital, Swindon — and
successfully re-tendering its Royal

Parks Agency contract for property
management services.

Rail

In 2001, the performance of all our

rail businesses continued to improve,
maintaining a clear focus on providing
efficient, high-quality maintenance,
enhancement and track renewal services
to our customers. Our trading with
Railtrack has not been direct('?r affected
by the company being placed in Railway
Administration. The new forms of
contract, under which we are working
in alliance with Railtrack, are delivering
significant benefits through improving
the efficiency and effectiveness of
infrastructure service delivery.

GTRM was awarded contracts worth
over £360 million during the year, the
largest being a five-year contract for
maintenance of the West Coast
Mainline, and now maintains around

21 per cent of the rail network. We also
henefited from increasing expenditure
on maintenance work, especially in

As one of the country’s leading

suppliers of high-quality maintenance,
enhancement and track renewal services,
Carillion Rail is playing an important rcle
in helping to improve the UK rail network.

London’s 17 Royal Parks will be in the safe
hands of Carillion Services for a further five
years, thanks to the company’s successful
re-tendering of its property management
contracl. The 28-strong team is headed by
contract manager lan Fothergill, whose work
takes in Hyde Park, Richmond Park, St James
Park and Green Park amongst others.

Operational Review: Business Services

Annual Report & Accounts 2001




the fourth quarter of the year. As the
Government has publicly reaffirmed its
commitment to spending £31 billion

on the national rail network over the
next 10 years and to securing £30 billion
of private sector investment, the outlock
in the rail market appears very positive in
both the short and lenger term,

Sole ownership of GTRM is enabling us to
release synergies through consolidating

all our rail activities into one business —
Carillion Rail — capable of offering
integrated solutions spanning design

and consultancy services, maintenance,
track renewal, enhancement projects,
including signalling, overhead electrification
and permanent way. Carillion Rail is
therefore well positioned to take
advantage of the increasing investment
forecast for all areas of the rail market,
including PPP projects.

Highways

Qur highways maintenance business
also had a successful year, reinforcing

its position as a leading supplier in this
important growth market. We were
awarded a number of major new contracts
and cantract extensions by the Highways
Agency, worth over £300 millien, and
now have contracts for maintaining
more than 25 per cent of the motorway
and trunk road network in England.

Terry Deveney is one of the team
working at BT's Grand Island
offices in Manchester, for our
Monteray joint venture, which is
responsible for the facilities
management of around 8,000
BT properties nationwide.
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Carillion was also appointed as a
Technology Framework Contractor by
the Highways Agency and renewed its
contract for maintenance of 123 km of
the M40 between the M25 and Warwick,
a PPP project in which Carillion is an
equity partner.

We were especially pleased to be awarded
two ground-breaking 7—year contracts with
the Highways Agency for Maintenance
Areas 5 and 8, each worth over £100
miflion and covering 1500 km of motorway
and trunk roads in the Home Counties and
East Midlands, including the whole of the
M25, Quality of service, not price, was the
main factor in awarding these contracts,
which recognised our commitment to
innovation and professional delivery,

7 days a week, 365 days a year, through
working in open relationships and using
the latest GPS technology.

The contract for Area 8 is the first of a

new generation of contracts under which

a Carillion-led joint venture is providing

a 'one-stop-shop’ service working in

Eartnershi.p with the Highways Agency,
oth to identify the maintenance wor

necessary and carry it out.

Carillion now has six Area Maintenance
caontracts for the Highways Agency under
which we provide routing maintenance

services and rapid response support to
the emergency services to deal with the
effects of accidents and incidents.

Recruitment, Fleet Management and
Insurance Services

2001 saw our national recruitment
business rebranded and launched as
SkyBlue. This business, which supplies
skilled people for the infrastructure and
construction services industries, is
performing well, Given the skills shortage
m these markets, we plan to develop
SkyBlue, using our Craft Training and
Learning Works facilities to enhance

our zhility to supply the skilled people
needed for these markets. Carillion Fleet
Management and Markfield Insurance also
continued to perform well and develop the
services they offer, including expanding
their external customer base.

A successful year for Carillion Highways
Maintenance brought in new contracts and
contract extensions, worth over £300 million,
awarded by the Highways Agency. This
vehicle is one of a fleet of spedial incident
support units operating on our M25 contract.
All vehicles carry glebal positioning equiprment
which, thanks to satellite tracking, enables us
to ensure a speedy response to incidents
around the motorway network.

Operational Review: Business Services
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Operational Review
Construction Services

2001 2000
Turnover £1,335.9m £1,487.5m
Operating profit* £22.3m  £25.7m
Margin 1.7% 1.7%
o pbd s 24%  1.9%

* Before exceptional items

Crown House Engineering staff
have been playing a key role

in bringing digital broadcasting
to the UK by installing services
in transmitters at 50 locations
around the country.
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In this segment we report the results of
all our construction activities, including
construction work associated with Public
Private Partnership projects.

Turnover was some 10 per cent lower,
primarily as a result of disposing of Carillion
Housing in July 2001, curtailing our UK civil
engineering activities on smaller projects
and rigorously adoptinl]; a more selective
approach by targeting larger, higher
value-added projects and minimising our
exposure to risk. For example, in 2001
around 80 per cent of turnover in Building
and Infrastructure Projects in this segment
came from 20 key customers.

Margins before net PPP bid costs improved
from 1.9 per cent 1o 2.4 per cent, largely
due to a good performance in Building
Developments, coupled with the effect

of continuing project selectivity. However,
our design and construction businesses
incurred significantly higher costs in 2001
in bidding for a growing number of PPP
projects in order to develop our PPP
portfolio, a key part of our strategy for
future growth. These design costs ate
written off until we become the preferred
bidder, at which point they are capitalised.
As we became preferred bidder on

only one project in 2001, few of these
costs were capitalised during the year,
Canseguently, averall cperating profit

reduced in 2001, but we expect it to move
ahead in 2002 as margins improve.

Maintaining a strong construction capability
in our chosen market sectors enables us

to promote our full range of services and
offer integrated solutions, from design
through construction to maintenance and
operation, that minimise the whole-life
costs of the services we provide.

Market leadership depends on delivering
high quality services that meet or exceed
our customers’ expectations. We were
therefore delighted that our commitment
{0 quality was recognised in 2001 by a
special Quality in Construction Award.
Given to mark the fifth anniversary of
these national awards, this award was
for exceptional performance over the
last five years, in terms of quality,

safety, environmental achievement and
leadership in improving the performance
of our industry.

Building

Carillion Building, the UK market leader in
commerdal building, continued to facus
selectively on higher value-added contracts
for long-term key customers, primarily

in the office and retail sectors. Building
Developments, which specialises in
managing developments where risk is
minimised by pre-letting to occupiers and

Carillion Building helped to continue the
transformation of Glasgow’s river front with
a contract 1o huild the stunning Glasgow
Science Centre. The impressive range of
buildings, some clad in titanium — a first for
the UK — opened to the public in 2001.

Cperaticnal Review: Construction Sefrvices
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by focusing on sectors where there is
strong institutional demand, had a good
year. It also manages the regeneration
of brownfield sites, where the Group's
extensive specialist skills can be used to
offer integrated solutions.

Our construction and project managemeant

business, Schal, and Consult, our design
and technical services consultancy
business, are now fully integrated with
our Building business, strengthening
our ability to provide total soluticns
both for traditional and PPP projects.

Building activity on PPP projects has
continued to increase and now accounts
for around a third of the output of our
building businesses. We believe that our
strong design and construction capability
and track record for quality and delivery
on time, is fundamental to continuing
our success in securing and delivering PPP
projects — a very visible area where our
success is essential to the success of our
customers, who are ultimately responsible
for ensuring that public services meet the
high standards we all expect.

Infrastructure Projects

Carillion’s infrastructure activities in the
UK are increasingly focused on larger
contracts where our skills and resources
enable us to offer higher added-value

services and minimise our exposure to risk.

Our recently completed £100 million-pius
contract to refurbish a large submarine
dry dock at Devenport is an excellent
example of higher quality work.
Managed in alliance with our customer,
DML, this complex and sensitive project
was completed to an exacting timetable
and to the highest standards.

The £485 million M6 Toll matarway,
currently being built by Carillion and its
three joint venture partners, is a good
example of a major contract for which
relatively few contractors could offer the
skills and resources necessary to deliver
the project. Construction started in Spring
2001 and is ahead of schedule.

Our infrastructure design and construction
skills are aiso important to our success in
delivering PPP projects, such as the A55

in Nerth Wales, which was completed
during the year, and Nottingham Express
Transit, a light rail project in which we

are an equity partner and on which good
progress Is being made,

International Regions _
Our International Business, which has

well-established operations in Canada, the

Middle East, the Caribbean, France and
the Republic of Ireland, has continued to
perform well. This business has built a

strong reputation for quality, safety and
efficiency, which provides an excellent
basis for promoting our PPP and Business
Services skills to overseas customers.

In 2001, cur Canadian joint venture
highways maintenance company was
awarded a further highways maintenance
contract in Ontario worth £25 million.
We are also partners in consortia that have
been shortlisted for four overseas private
finance projects — three major toll roads in
the Republic of Ireland and the Triservices
Defence College in Oman. Early in 2002,
we formed joint ventures with Emaar
Properties PJSC in Dubai and Guardian
Properties in Trinidad, which together
could lead to facilities management
business worth up to £500 million over
the next 10 years.

Crown House Engineering (CHE}

The restructuring of our mechanical and
electrical engineering business, CHE,

was completed successfully and on time
in 2001, The management team has
implemented the strategic and operational
changes we announced in 2000 and is
building a profitable portfolio of new
contracts, which is driving a steady
improvement in CHE's performance.

Several Carillion businesses teamed up

to build a massive nuclear submarine dry
dock at Devonport. The 200-metre long
dock is designed to withstand shockwaves
greater than a major earthquake.

Our Caribbean business has wen a range
of prestigious building projects including the
National Library in Port of Spain, Trinidad.
The eight-starey building was completed in
record time for client London Street Project
Company Limited,
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Sustainable solutions
For the way we live today

This summary is an outline of the progress
we have made in the past 12 menths.
You <an find out more fram our detailed
Sustainability Report 2001 on our website

www.carillionplc.com/sustainability

2001 was a year of significant change
and development for our sustainability
programme, which has evolved from the
environmental programme we started

in 1994,

This is the second year in which we have
reported on our sustainability performance
and the summary here is supported by
two more detailed reports - a 16-page
Sustainability Review and a full review

of our performance during 2001,

which s published on our website
www.carlllionplc. com/sustainability.

Here we have summarised our new
sustainability policy, the scope of our
programme, how we manage its
implementation and our performance in
2001. Our performance is reported against

specific targets and in wider qualitative terms

in accordance with the UK Gevernment’s
four objectives for sustainable development:
- effective protection of the environment

- prudent use of natural resources

- social progress and

- economic growth and prosperity.

Managing the programme

Our Sustainability Committee was
reconstituted in 2001 to refresh and
strengthen its role in providing strategic
focus, setting targets and driving our
sustainability programme. Chaired by

Sir Neville Simms, Carillion’s Chairman, the
Committee includes Roger Robinson, the
main Board Director, whose respensibilities
include Sustainability, and other members
of Carilion’s senior management team. An
independent external perspective is provided
by Jonathan Porritt, who is also Chairman
of the UK Government’s Sustainable
Development Commission, In 2002, we
intend to appoint a second independent
member with further experience in the area
of corporate social responsibility.

Reporting to the Sustainability Committee,
our Sustainahility Operations Group
comprises operational and support

staff from across all our businesses,

It is responsible for overseeing the
implementation of cur annual programmes
and for advising all Carillion’s businesses on
the challenges and opportunities they
encounter in delivering their targets.

Vision and Strategy

In 2001, we developed our formal
sustainability policy and communicated this
1o the Group. OQur new poligr provides a
better basis upon which to develop our
sustainability targets and has enabled us to
link these to the Group’s business strategy
and objectives. This link is vital if we are

to embed the principles of sustainable
development into all our business activities
to the benefit of all our stakeholders.

A history of Carillion’s
sustainabilitfy strategy
Eight years of change

1994 > 1999

2000 -

2001 >

- Independent Advisory panel established
- First environmental pelicy adopted
- First environmental report published

- First construction company to join WWF
95+ group supporting sustainable timber

- Crown House (Manufacturing Centre)
achieved SO 14001 and awarded H & V
News Environment Achievement Award

- Joined Natural Step Pathfinder Programme

* Winner of Quality in Construction
Environmental Achievement Award

- 55% of environmental targets achieved

« Published first Environmental Community
and Social report, for 1999-2000, and won
ACCA Award for 15t time reporting

- West Midlands Index of Corporate
Environmental Engagement (Business in
the Community) placed Cariltion in the
top quintite overall and first in the
Construction Sector

- Joined the BITC piiot scheme "Winning
with Integrity’ to measure Corporate
Social Responsibility

+ 69% of environmental targets achieved and
15O 14001 extended to 75% of businesses

+ Sustainability Pelicy and Strategy introduced

+ Cariflion was the only Construction to
Services company featured in the
FTSE4Good UK Index

« First Sustainability Report —
published on the Internet
www carillionple.com/sustainability

« Carillion Natura! Habitats introduced in
nartnership with The Wildlife Trust; Schal
instrumental in setting up the South
Lendon Construction Best Practice Group

+ 84% of targets fully or substantizlly
achieved and {50 14001 extended to
83% of businesses
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2001 Highlights

Protection of the Environment

Emissions to Atmosphere

Through robust management systerns and
by providing &/l cur people on project sites
with appropriate guidelines and training,
we are committed to the effective control
of all on-site activities in order to prevent
environmental nuisance. For example, in
2001 an environmental briefing detailing
the hazards and control methods associated
with dust management was given on over
70 per cent of contracts in Infrastructure
Services and Infrastructure Projects.

Discharges to Water

Carillion recognises that cnsite activities may
have the potential to cause environmental
risks to watercourses. Strict procedures,
often developed in partnersﬁip with the
Environment Agency, are designed and
implemented to reduce this risk.

Discharges to Land

We are committed to providing guidance
on the best way to deal with contamination
that may already exist on a site. In the case
of our Nottingham Express Transit contract,
following the identification of six hectares
of contaminated land we safely removed,
treated and disposed of 2,400 tonnes

of material.

Preventing contamination occuiring <due
to any of our activities is also a priority. For
example, Carillion Rail uses biodegradable
hydraulic il in on-track plant to imit the
impact of any spillages.

Biodiversity

Carillion places great imporiance on
protecting and enhancing biodiversity at
all operational sites, often through
partnership with local interest groups.

In 2001, we launched a sponsorship
partnership — The Carillion Natural Habitats
Scheme — with the national conservation
charity The Wildlife Trusts. Through the
partnership, 47 Wildiife Trusts across the
country are able to apply for grants 1o
fund conservation projects. Environmental
projects in Nottingham, Berkshire and
Gloucestershire have already benefited
fram the scheme. Carillion on-site and
office-based staff are also encouraged

to become involved in these projects.

During the demolition of a Victerian
hospital in Dartford, three species of hats
were found to have made their home in
the building’s window frames. To avoid
harming the bats — a protected species -
hundreds of window frames were
carefully rernoved and the bats re-housed
in specially constructed bat boxes placed
in trees surrounding the site. The progress

of the bats will be manitared for the next
five years.

Prudent Use of Natural Resources
Carillion is committed to minimising the use
of non-renewable materials in its operations.
We do this through our erwironmental
rnaragement systemn (83 per cent of our
businesses are accredited to 1SO 140071),
our supply chain management system, our
waste reduction procedures and our
sustainable design systems.

Use of Energy/Carbon Dioxide (CO3)
Production

We are taking active steps to reduce energy
use across the Group by increasing the
number of offices supplied by hydroelectric
power, a renewable source of electricity,

A total of 52 fadilities now use hydroelectric
power, compared with only our head office
facilities in 2007,

We are also committed tc the continued
reduction ¢f energy and CO: by reducing
the need to travel and encouraging the use
of LPG vehicles. Carillion's company cars are
currently responsible for 7,500 tonnes of
carbon dioxide emissions per year, Our
challenge is to reduce average annual
business mileage for our car fleet by

20 per cent, by the end of 2003.

Carillien is the first company in the
construction sector to publish a
Sustainahility Policy.

Girls from St.Mary’s Brownies at Moorbridge
pond in Nottinghamshire. Moorbridge

Pond Nature Reserve — a wetland site of
considerable importance — was the first to
benefit from the Carilion Natural Habitats
scheme, which helps local wildlife trusts to
promate and develop understanding of the
delicate ecological balance of local wildlife.

o+

Carillion plc s
carillion

Sustainability Policy

Carillion provides sustainable
solutions for the way we live.
We will achieve this by

Sharing our vision and policy
with all

Turning our vision into reality
by embedding sustainability
into everything we do

Measuring and verifying our
progress

Promoting our vision as an
instrument of change

John McDonough - Chief Executive
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Sustainable solutions
For the way we live today
continued

Sustainable Supply Chain Management
We recognise that to be fully effective, our
sustainability programme has to extend
both up and down the supply chain. We are
working with cur customers and suppliers
to promote the environmental and business
benefits of ‘areening’ our supply chain.

" Waterloo plc has recently completed the
Acorn Programme leading to a proposed
accreditation to 1SO 14001, Cariliion and
its Mechanical and Electrical Engineering
business, Crown House Engineering, both
initially motivated and gave welcome
guidance throughout the process. Their
appreciation and understanding of the
demands of the construction industry
ensured that their advice was both relevant
and appropriate. Without this suppeort it is
unlikely that Waterloo Air Management
would have achieved 15O accreditation for at
least ancther twelve months. By working in
partnershiﬁ with Crown House Engineering,
Waterloo has now gained significant
competitive advantage by reducing waste
throughout the supply chain.”

Waterloo Air Management, Crown House
Engineering supplier.

Sustainable Design

Innovation and smart thinking about how
we design, build and maintain buildings

for our customers are key to deliverin
sustainable buildings that minimise whole-
life costs. Our designers are committed

to ensuring that sustainable issues are
considered in the early stages of design.
We believe that the design phase is the real
starting point for major decision making in
the construction and maintenance process
and this is pivotal for the delivery of many
aspects of sustainability. To help in delivering
better solutions we have developed a
procedure for lifecycle analysis to be applied
at the earliest stages of all design and build
projects, particularly those we also finance
under the Government’s Public Private
Partnership programme,
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Resource Consumption/Wastage
Reduce, re-use and recycle are the principles
upon which we have based our position
statement for waste minimisation, These
principles are applied on our project sites
and in our offices where waste
management is an important issue.

Economic Growth and Prosperity

We aim to maintain our position as a leader
in the construction to services sectors by
using sustainable development principles

to deliver enhanced shareholder value.

“ The University has high expectations

in the context of sustainability. We were
pleased to find that Carillion's proposals
met those expectations and this was an
important factor in Carillion’s selection

as our private sector partner in the
development of the de Havilland Campus.”
Professor Ann Smith, Co-ordinator

of the University of Hertfordshire's
Environmental Strategy.

Investment in Environmental and
Community Initiatives

Carillion is a member of the PerCent
Club and contributes over one per cent
of its profits (cash or in-kind support) to
environmental and community activities.

We are instrumental in supporting
environmental initiatives throughout

the industry. As a core member of the
Construction Industry and Information
Association we provide funding, expertise
and experience to project steering
committees and publications. Carillion is
also part of the government and industry
funded Partners in Innovation Scheme.

Environmental Accounting

We believe that by applying accounting
methods te environmental practices the
link between financial and environmental
perfermance will become mere visible.
The Nottingham Express Transit Line

One Contract is actively assessing the
financial costs and savings of environmental
management. The environmental accounts
show that during 2G01 almost £300,000
was saved on waste disposal costs by
reusing and recycling excavated materials.

Health and Safety

Policies, Procedures and Verification

In addition to our prime concern for the
safety and well being of our employees,
there are sound comimercial reasons for
improving health and safety performance.
Carillion fully recognises the value to the
company, both financial and reputational,
of achieving this through the rigorous
application of its health and safety policies
and management procedures.

The Construction Task Farce report {Egan,
1998) acknowledged that it is not easy to
sustain major improvements in an industry
as diverse as construction, but nevertheless
concluded that this must be achieved in
order to secure the future of the industry.
Therefore, an understanding of the industry
itself must lie at the heart of any strategy
to address health and safety. In addition to

Sustainable solutions

the risks attendant during the operational
delivery phase of projects, significant
expaosures 1o risk can be created at the
design, tender and procurement stages.

Intervention at ali stages of a project,
particularly those where signif?cant risks
exist, to identfy and manage risk is
logically the most efficient and effective
approach to improving health and safety
performance. However, a corporate
decision to adopt this approach must

be accompanied by processes to avoid
conflicts of interest and ensure proper
implementation.

The construction and services industries
have a poor record in managing work-
induced ill health. As a result, a significant
amount of work time is lost through
absence and quaiity of life is reduced for
those affected. Health issues can create
potential off-balance sheet risks that

can jeopardise long-term value. Carillion
therefore recognises the fundamental
importance of adopting strategies to
control and manage exposures to risk that
could result in work-induced ill health,

Carillion has helped to lead many of the
changes within our sector, by ensuring that
the approach adopted towards health and
safety complemenis the aims and values
of the company and is fully recognised as
adding value to the business, not merely
compliance with statutory requirements.

The approach currently adopted towards
health and safety legislation in the UK is
one of self-regulation, based on the
concept of goal setting through risk
assessment. Duty holders should not
simply focus on the control of a specific
hazard, but address the capability of the
organisation to tackle risk proactively in

a systematic manner. Application of

these requirements draws heavily on
ideas from Total Quality Management,
which promotes continuous improvement
in all aspects of an organisation’s activities.
The emphasis is on identifying the key
pracesses, setting performance standards,
measuring achievernent against these
standards, identifying opportunities for
improvement and taking the appropriate
corrective action.

Our policy reflects decisions made at the
highest level within the Company, starting
with the commitment of the Chief Executive
and the Board towards health and safety.
The Directors have also subscribed to a
'Safety Charter’, which sets out a number
of measurable aspects of our performance
and continues to provide a sound
foundation for delivering continuous
performance improvement, and this will be
incorporated into our general Policy in 2002.

Business Groups implement management
systems based on 150 9000 and 15O 14001,
which focus on health and safety at the
point of delivery and ensure issues are
dealt with as an integral part of operational
activity. In 2001, the Board decided that
our Business Groups should alse work
towards compliance with OHSAS 18001,
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within an integrated management system.
Cariliion acknowledges the challenges

set out in the Governments "Revitalising
Health and Safety” strategy and

supports the objects of setting targets

and reporting performance, as advised

in the Health and Safety Commission’s
publication ‘Health and Safety in Annual
Reports’. We believe that these documents
set a positive framework for performance
evaluation and ensure transparency in
relation to the health and safety elements
of an organisation’s social and ethica)
responsibilfities. Carillion is working
towards these objectives and is striving

to demonstrate how these matters
contribute to overall business performance.

For a number of years, Carillion has set
health and safety targets and reported
performance in the public domain.
However, we also recognise the benefits
of warking with other major companies
1o assist in the delivery of an agreed set
of targets across our industry sector.

For example, as a member of the Major
Contractors Group, an organisation
representing 23 of the UK’ largest
construction companies, Cariilion is a
si%natory to the Group's "Health and Safety
Charter” and the targets that it supports.

More detailed information on our
performance in 2001 can be found on
our website www.carillionplc.comv/safety,

Social impact

Carillion seeks to improve the quality of
life for employees, their families and the
local communities where it operates.

What a business produces, haw it buys
and sells, how it affects the environment,
how it recruits, trains and devefops its own
people, how it invests in the communit?/]
and respects the rights of people - ali these
add together to form the impact of that
business on society.

People

Carillion has joined ‘Impact on Society’
a pilot project sponsored by Business In
The Community to assist businesses in
managing all areas of their impact on
society in a practical, consistent and
effective manner. This also supports
our efforts to improve the quality of
life for all our stakeholders — employees,
their families, customers, suppliers,
shareholders and the communities in
which we work,

Learning Development

We recognise our employees are cur
greatest assets and that we can enhance
their value and offer greater appartunities
for aur people by striving to be a learning
organisation.

Our employees have the opportunity for
personal development and training, which
includes sustainability and our programme
for sustainable development. This is
provided through Learning Works,
Carillion’s internal learning resource.

Over 3,000 empioyees attended training
courses during 2001 at Learning Works ~
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more than a 1,000 of these people
attended environmental courses. Many
others attended external courses and were
involved in ‘toolbox talks” and inductions,
developed and delivered at site level.

In conjunction with the CITB we have

also developed an interactive web-hased
course to increase awareness of sustainable
development. This has been on trial in
Carillion and will be made availakle 1o

the industry in general during 2002,

Communication

We understand the importance of
communicating with our people at all
fevels, In response to employee requests
for increased face-to-face communication,
in 2001 we introduced monthly Team
Briefing. This enables us to cascade
news and information to all our people
on Group- wide initiatives, including
sustainability, as well as issues spedific to
individual businesses. Most importantly,
it provides a regular forum for two-way
communication and a direct route for
issues to be raised with any member of
our senior management team.

We are currently rolling out our Valuing
the Future workshops across the whole
of the business, helping our people to
understand and live our core Values
throughout the business. Living our
Values every day in the way we work
with each other and with our customers
and suppliers, will help Carillion to
greater success,

2001 Performance -

Objectives and Targets

2007 saw the completion of 13 two-year
objectives, which were first adopted at the
beginning of 2000. These abjectives were
supported by annual milestone targets
and in 2001, 32 targets were adopted for
delivery across Carillion. We are pleased

to report that 84.4 per cent of the targets
were fully or substantially achieved,
compared to /8.9 per cent in 2000.
Despite making our targets increasingly
challenging, we have continued to improve
our performance.

A detailed breakdown of our performance
against 2001 targets and our two-year
objectives can be found in our Internet
Report — www. carillionplc.com/sustainability

Challenges for 2002

New two-year sustainability objectives
have been set, together with annual
targets for 2002. The scope and relevance
of these targets was reviewed by our
Sustainability Committee and senior
management to ensure that they are
aligned with strategic business objectives
to deliver real benefits to the Group.

Qur 2002 ohjectives are based arcund the
Government's four objectives for sustainable
development and are detailed below:

Protection of the Environment

Minimise negative impacts of Carillion’s
services and activities on the environment,

Sustainable solutions

Prudent use of Natural Resources _
Reduce waste production across Carillion.

Reduce energy consumption across Carillion.

Social Progress

Communicate and share Carillion’s
sustainability strategy, vision and polic
and continually improve the way in Wﬁich
we engage with all our stakeholders.

Economic Growth and Prosperity
Demonstrate the business case for
sustainability and engage Carillien’s
supply chain in the sustainability
programme to improve the sustainable
development performance of our
suppliers to help us achieve cur targets.

" Whichever way you cut it, the concept

of ‘sustainable construction’ is going

to become an increasingly important
differentiator in this sector. With hillions
of pounds going into new hospitals,
new schools, new infrastructure, let
alone the normal flow of new buildings
for work, leisure and retail, it's vitally
important that these inputs into the

UK economy produce not just economic
benefits, but lasting social and
environmental benefits, Carillion has an
impressive track record in responding
Froactively to that challenge, and a clear
eadership commitment to driving that
agenda even harder in the future. It's
an exciting time for me 1o be joining its
Sustainahility Committee.”

Jonathan Porritt, Chairman of UK
Government’s Sustainable Development
Commission and independent member
of Carillion’s Sustainability Committee.

Summary

The business case for sustainable
development continues to increase, year
on year. We recognise that companies
offering mare sustainable services and
solutions will increasingly differentiate
themselves from competitors,

Our achievernents during the year have

been substantial and we have made

real progress towards becoming a more

sustaina%le business. For example,

- 84.4 per cent of targets were fully or
substantially achieved

-accident frequency rate improved by
16 per cent

- we strengthened our understandin
and the delivery of economic benefgi]ts
from environmental management

- we received over 30 awards,

We are looking forward to the next phase
of our sustainable development in 2002,
This wilt involve our stakeholders to
ensure that we continue to advance and
demonstrate that we can provide truly
sustainable solutions for the way we live.

For a more detailed explanation of

our sustainability strategy, targets and
achievements please access our website
on www.carillionplc.com/sustainability.
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Financial Review

Strong cash flow from operations

enabled us to fund substantial acquisitions
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Financial Review

Reporting Segments

The most significant change to the
presentation of the financial statements is
the way in which we segment our results.
The change to three segments has been
made in order to report the results of
businesses with similar risk profiles and
returns in the same segment. This
improves clarity and consistency and
makes it easier to value our earnings,

as well as facilitating comparison with
our peers. The new segments are detailed
elsewhere in the Annual Report but the
following describes the major changes.

Investments reflect our share of
turnover, prefits and net assets coming
from our equity stakes in Public Private
Partnership projects.

Business Services includes the previous
services segment (excluding Crown House
Engineering) and our Infrastructure
Management business (road and rail) as
well as Facilities Management activities
previously reported in Private Finance.

Construction Services includes the majority
of those businesses previously in the
Building and Capital Project segments

plus Crown House Engineering (previously
in Services) and the censtruction related
PPP activities previously in the Private
Finance segment.

The majority of profits reported in the
new segments come from self-standing
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businesses {which trade with each other
at arms length) and are easily identifiable.
Common overheads are spread across
businesses/segments based on usage

of any particular service. Each segment
bears its own PPP bid costs.

Treasury

The Group continues to operate a
centralised treasury functicn, which is
not a profit centre and does not enter
into speculative financial transactions.
Since the year-end, new revolving credit
facilities totalling £145 million have been

put in place, with maturities of three years.

Facilities totalling £110 million maturing
in 2002 have been cancelled.

In addition, there is substantial debt
within Special Purpose Companies in
which we have minority stakes relating

to PPP projects. The lenders have no rights
of recourse to Carillion for repayment.

Full details of these schemes are contained
in Note 14 on pages 57 and 58 of the
accounts. Trading between these Special
Purpose Companies and Carillion is strictly
on an arms length basis controiled by
independent boards with representatives
of our other trade and financial investors.
Certain interest rate exposures within the
Special Purposes Companies relating to
this non-recourse debt are hedged using
interest rate derivatives.

Accounting Policies
As reported last year, our PPP assets are
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Operating profit
{Before exceptlonai items)

Operating cash inflow
(Before exceptional items)

£48.4m

Acquisitions

£60.6m

Net cash

£52.1m

accounted for either as a debtor or a
fixed asset dependent on the balance

of risk attendant on the asset concerned
(as required by FRS 5). Whilst this has
little effect on averall PBT, the differing
treatment does result in marked
differences in the split between operating
profit and interest. During the year four
projects moved from construction into
service operation, three of which are
now accounted for as a contract debtor.
The effect of this versus fixed asset
accounting in the year has been a
decrease of around £4.6 million in

jeint venture operating profit and a
broadly corresponding decrease in joint
venture net interest payable. PPP bid costs
continue to be written off until we reach
preferred bidder at which stage they are
capitalised. Qur historic success rate in
getting from preferred bidder to financial
close is 100 per cent.

Pensions
Note 30 on pages 71 and 72 to the
accounts shows the disclosures required
under FRS 17 "Retirement Benefits’,
which will be fully implemented for the
%ear ending 31 December 2003. FRS 17
rings a radically different approach to
accounting for defined benefit pension
schemes reguiring surpluses or deficits
to be recognised in the employer’s
balance sheet and for scheme ‘assets to
be valued at market value at the balance
sheet date. Liabilities are to be valued
using appropriate corporate bond rates.

Financial Review

£51.6m

At 31 December 2001, the various
schemes operated by Carillien had
assets of £881.4 million and a surplus
of £84.6 million.

Cashflow and Acquisitions

Operating cash inflow in the year before
exceptional items was £60.6 million,
compared to an operating prefit before
exceptional items of £48.4 million.

Major non-operating expenditure in

the year consisted of the acquisition

of the remaining 51 per cent of GT
Railway Maintenance for £34.5 million and
the purchase of further equity in cur PPP
concessions of £17.6 miilion as detailed

in Note 29 on page 68 of the accounts.
The GT Railway Maintenance acquisition
generated goodwilt of £41.7 million, which
will be written off over a 20-year period.
Within the profit and loss account, interest
relating to the Group is shown separately
to that relating to joint ventures, Net
interest for the Group was positive
reflecting the improved cash performance
in the year. Interest payable relating to
joint ventures is largely attributable to
non-recourse funding of PPP projects.

Chris Girling
Finance Director
13 March 2002
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Corporate Governance Report

General principles
The Beard is firmly committed to high standards of corporate governance. The provisions of the Combined Code, as adopted by the
UK Listing Authority, have been applied by the Company as detailed below and in the Remuneration Report.

During the year to 31 December 2001, the Company complied with the provisions set out in Section 1 of the Combined Code other
than in respect of the duration of Executive Directors’ service contracts. Whilst the Combined Code recommends the objective of
reducing notice pericds to one year {or less), the Board's current policy in this respect reflects the long term nature of many of the
Group's project-related activities. As an exception to this, the Chief Executive's service contract is terminable by one year's notice.

With the appointment of John McDonough as Chief Executive on 1 January 2001, the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive both
previcusly held by Sir Neville Simms were separated. Sir Neville became Non-Executive Chairman on 1 February 2001.

Directors

The Board

Following the reorganisation of the Board during the year, the Company is now headed by a Board comprising three Executive and
four Non-Executive Directors (for details of the Board structure during 2001 see the Chairman’s Statement on page 3} Throughout
2001, the Chairman and the Non-Executive Birectors comprised more than half of the Board and this continues 1o be the case.
With the exception of the Chairman who previously was Chief Executive, each of the Non-Executive Directors are considered to

be independent of management: they each have wide areas of experience and have no business or other relationship which could
materially interfere with their independent judgement. Jean-Paul Parayre is the senior independent Non-Executive Director in
succession to Roger Brooke who stood down as a Director on 31 December 2001.

The Board has a programme of seven meetings during the year and alse meets on an ad hoc basis as required. A formal schedule

of matters reserved to the Board for consideration and decision is maintained and all Directors have access to the Company Secretary,
who is responsible to the Board for ensuring that agreed procedures and applicable rules and regulations are observed. The
appointment and removal of the Company Secretary are matters for the Board as a whole. Any Director may, in furtherance

of his duties, take independent professional advice where necessary, at the expense of the Company.

The Board is provided with reqular and timely information on the financia! performance of businesses within the Group,

and of the Group as a whole, together with reports an other trading matters, markets, sustainability and other relevant issues.
In addition, the Board reviews, determines and approves Company strategy, annual budgets and participation in major project
undertakings as appropriate.

The Board has established a number of committees including the following:

The Remuneration Committee which comprises all the Non-Fxecutive Directors (with the exception of Sir Neville Simms) and,
following the retirement of Roger Brooke at the end of 2001, is now chaired by Andrew Parrish. It has a key role in reviewing and

advising the Board on the appropriate remuneration for the Executive Directors of Carillion plc. Further details on remuneration issues
are given on pages 31 to 37.

The Audit Committee which cormprises all the Non-Executive Directors and is chaired by Roger Dickens. Its terms of reference
require that it meets at least three times each year and include the review of the annual and interim financial statements,
consideration of the impact of changes to accounting regulations, the operating, financial and accounting policies of the Group
and its statutory and other external compliance requirements. The Committee has responsibility for the role of the internal audit
function and reviews all aspects of internal audit activity. The Committee also reviews the scope and results of the external audit
and its cost-effectiveness, and ensures that the internal and external audit functions are complementary. The independence and

objectivity of the external auditors are monitored and their services are reviewed, including non-audit services, so as to ensure
a proper balance between objectivity and value for money.

The Nominations Committee was established during 2001, its role having previously been undertaken by the Appointments and
Remuneration Committee. The Nominations Committee comprises all the Non-Executive Directors and is chaired by Sir Neville Simms.
It considers the size and structure of, and any new appointments to, the Board.

Other Board Matters

Policy on external appointments

Recegnising that external appointments can broaden their knowledge and therefore be of benefit to the Company, Executive
Directors are permitted, at the discretion of the Board, to accept a limited number of such appointments and retain the fees received
for such appointments. No Executive Director currently has such an external appointmenit.
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Nomination and remuneration of Directors
The appointment of a Director is a matter for resolution by the Board as a whole, taking advice from the Nominations Committee.

In the case of Non-Executive Directors, initial appointments are normally for three years; re-appointment is subject to review
and is not automatic. As an exception, the Chairman has a service contract initially for the period up to 31 January 2003.

The fees of Non-Executive Directors are for determination by the Board as a whole, taking into account the commitment reguired

and participation in the work of committees and other advisory services in relation to the business of the Group. In advising the Board
on such fee levels, it is the policy of the Executive Directors to seek independent external advice concerning the appropriateness

of the amounts by comparison with general practice. The level of fees currently payable to the Non-Executive Directars is based

on independent external advice,

The remuneraticn of the Directors is dealt with in the Remuneration Report on page 32.

Retirement of Directors by rotation

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that each Director shall retire from office and shall be eligible for re-election
at the third Annual General Meeting after the meeting at which he was elected or last re-elected.

All Girectors appointed by the Board are subject to retirement and election by sharehclders at the first Annual General Meeting
following such appointment.

Training of Directors
Training in matters relating to the directorship of a listed Company is provided for all members of the Board where appropriate.

Relations with shareholders

In addition to communicating with sharehalders generally from time to time, the Executive Directors meet regularly with
representatives of major shareholders in order to foster the mutual understanding of abjectives.

Private and institutional shareholders are encouraged to attend the Company’s Annua! General Meeting.

The Company complies fully with the provisions of the Combined Code in respect of the notice, content of agenda and conduct
of its Annual General Meetings.

Accountability and Audit

Iinternal controls
The Board is ultimately responsible for the Group’s system of internal control encompassing all significant financial and non-financial
risks and for reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control system. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than

efiminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

Following publication of guidance for Directors on internal control internal Control: Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code
(the "Turnbull guidance’), the Board confirms that there is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant
risks faced by the Group, including its joint ventures, that this process has been in place for the year under review and up to

the date of approval of the annual report and accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board and accords with the
Turnbull Guidance.

It is policy te bring organisations acquired within the Group's system of internal control as soon as practicable and in any event within
twelve months of acquisition.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control. In particular, it has reviewed and updated the process

for identifying and evaluating the significant risks affecting the business and the policies and procedures by which these risks are
managed. Practical guidance for all staff is maintained in Group policy and procedure documents regarding the authorisation levels
for commitments, contract selectivity and bidding, the provision of guarantees and management accounting as well as reporting and
resolution of suspected fraudulent activities. In reviewing the system of internal control, the Board has been mindful of the impact
of the corporate restructuring as a part of the Business Improvement Programme.
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Management are responsible for the identification and evaluation of significant risks applicable to their areas of business together
with the design and operation of suitable internal controls. These risks are assessed on a continual basis and may be associated with
a variety of internal or external sources including control breakdowns, disruption in information systems, competition, natural
catastrophe and regulatory requirements.

A process of control risk self-assessment and hierarchical reporting are established which provides for a documented and auditable
trail of accountability. These procedures are relevant across Group operations and provide for successive assurances to be given at
increasingly higher levels of management and, finally, to the Board. This process is facilitated by Internal Audit which also reviews the
operation and validity of the system of internal control. Planned corrective actions are independently manitored for timely completion.

At regular performance review meetings the management report to the Executive Directors, whose main role is to review, on behalf
of the Board, the key risks inherent in the business and the system of control necessary to manage such risks. The results of these
meetings are presented o the Board. Internal Audit independently reviews the risk identification procedures and control processes
implemented by management, and reports to the Audit Committee on a regular basis. The Audit Committee reviews the assurance
procedures ensuring that an appropriate mix of techniques is used to obtain the level of confidence required by the Board. The Audit
Committee presents its findings to the Board on a regular basis and the Head of Internal Audit has access to the Audit Committee
members if and when required.

A cornmittee of the Board, known as the Major Projects Committee, acts as the sanctioning body for capital projects, major contracis
and substantial company and business acquisitions and disposals. This committee has delegated authority up to specified levels,
beyond which Board approval is required.

The Executive Directors report to the Board on material changes in the business and the external environment, which affect significant
risks. The Finance Director provides the Board with regular financial information, which includes key performance indicators and a

summary of risk. Where areas for improvement are identified, the Board considers the recommendations made both by the Executive
Directors and the Audit Committee,

Health and safety

The Beard recognises that the social and ethical responsibilities in relation to the effective management of health and safety can lead
to long term financial and nan-financial benefits for the organisaticn and its stakeholders.

Health and safety is an item in the schedule of matters reserved for the Board and Roger Robinson, the QOperations Cirector, has
Board responsibility for these matters.

The Beard has identified, evaluated and is managing significant risks in relation te health and safety. Controls provide a reasonable
but not an absclute level of assurance that the risks identified are adequately managed to achieve business objectives and minimise
losses or hreaches of statutory requirements. Health and safety standards and performance expectations are constantly changing and

the Board reviews how best to ensure that on-going processes for risk-focused health and safety management are integrated within
the overall internal control framework.

Health and safety matters are reported at every meeting of the Board. The reporting and review process provides assurance to

the Board as to the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls. This process is facilitated by the Company's Health and Safety
Committee, which is chaired by Roger Robinson. The managing directors and key senior managers of the Group's businesses attend
this committee where pelicy and performance is reviewed.

Training in hezlth and safety issues relevant to Executive Directors’ responsibilities is provided on a regular basis.

The Group's remuneration policy is based upon Carillion’s strategic objectives, which specifically include achieving high standards
in respect of sustainability, which encompasses Carillion’s health & safety, environmental and social performance.

Going concern
After making due enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adeguate resources ta continue

in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the accounts.

RF Tapp
Secretary
13 March 2002
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This report has been prepared in accordance with the Combined Code.

The Board is responsible for determining policy for remuneration of the Directors of Carillion plc and key members of the senior
management team. The Remuneration Committee, which comprises all of the Non-txecutive Directors (with the exception of
Sir Neville Simms) and which is chaired by Andrew Parrish, is responsible for formulating policy and recommending to the Board
the remuneration of the Executive Directors. The Board determines the fees of the Non-Executive Directors.

Remuneration policy

It is the policy of the Company to ensure that remuneration and other benefits attract, motivate and retain Executive Directors

and senior managers of the required calibre to achieve the Board's objectives, including that of achieving growth in shareholder value.
Rermuneration and other benefits are determined with regard to competitive market practice and, where considered appropriate,

are supported by external independent surveys. The main elements of remuneration of the Executive Directors are basic salary

and pension benefits; annual performance bonus and share incentive schemes are linked to the Group's financial and share price
performance to ensure that the interests of the Executive Directors are aligned fo those of the shareholders.

Service contracts

Executive Directors’ service contracts are terminable in normal circumstances by two years’ notice from the Company. Whilst the
Combined Code states there is a case for reducing notice periods to ene year or less, the Board's current policy in this respect reflects
the long term nature of many of the Group's project-related activities. As an exception 1o this, the Chief Executive’s service contract
is terminable by one year's notice fram the Company, Upon termination of their employment, Executive Directars of the Company
have no additional entitlement t¢ compensation for loss of their office as Directors.

Euan McEwan and John Sharples teft the employment of Cariltion plc on 30 April and 30 September 2001 respectively. Whilst no
ex-gratia payments were made to either for loss of office as a Director of the Company, John Sharples received cash compensation

of £303,000 in respect of his terminated contract of employment. An additional payment of £110,000 was made to the Carillion '8’
Pension Scheme to provide additional pension. Euan McEwan received cash compensation of £333,800. At the discretion of the
Remuneration Committee, the former Directors were allowed to retain a conditional interest to benefit from the Founders’ Equity Plan
and the Long Term Incentive Plan. Their interests were reduced pro-rata by reference to the total performance period for each Plan.

Non-Executive Directors are not employed under contracts of service, but are generally appointed for fixed terms of three years
renewable for a further one to three years if both parties agree. As Chairman and in recognition of the associated responsibilities,
Sir Neville Simms has a contract of service initially for a period of two years which commenced on 1 February 2001 and which will
continue thereafter if both parties agree unless and untit terminated by either party giving one year’s notice.

Basic salary and other benefits
The basic salaries and other benefits of the Executive Directors are set by the Remuneration Committee and are determined taking

into account individual performance and information provided by independent sources on the rate of salary for similar posts in
comparable companies. The aim is to reward Directors fairly and competitively.

Annual performance bonus

Annual cash bonuses are reviewed each year by the Remuneration Commitiee which sets performance targets geared to profit, key
financial indicators and individual performance objectives. The Executive Directors have the potential to earn annual bonuses up to

a maximum of 50% of their basic salary for outstanding performance. The bonus arrangement for 2002 sets a financial performance
target based on earnings per share and personal performance objectives that support the strategic abjectives of the Company.

While Executive Directors retain the maximum bonus opportunity of 50%, cash payments are limited to 30% with any bonus

earned in excess of 30% being invested in the shares of the Company vesting after one year.

Pension benefits

The Group makes contributions to an Inland Revenue approved defined benefit scheme and, where applicable and where the
individual has elected, to funded unapproved retirement benefit schemes (FURBS) on behalf of the Executive Directors. Alternatively,
a payment equal to the contribution the Group would have made to the FURBS is paid to the Executive Directors as a salary
supplement, Contributions 1o the FURES are reported as a benefit in kind on an annual basis, Salary supplements are taxed at source.
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Directors’ remuneration
The remuneration of the Directors of Carillion plc for the year ended 31 December 2001 is set out in the table below.

Annual

Basic performance Other Total Total
£000% salary/fees bonus benefits 2001 2000
Sir Neville Simms (until 31 January2001) 2 - 9 38 49
john McDonough 35 94 124 543 -
Chris Girling . e . s s A 302 24
RogerRobinson 20 6 3 39 230
Euan McEwan* also see below R T B8 208
John Sharples* also see below o o o o 172 - 10 182 228
Total for Executive Directors 1,053 219 202 1,474 1,364
Non-Executive Dlrectors _ _ B o
sir Neville Simms (from 1 February 2001 137 - 20 157 -
Roger Brooke* 3= M550 50
Roger D|ckens V B o o o o " . 25 . . . " 25 15
John- S Parayre e e e et 25 e - e _ . 25 25
Andrew Parrish N S - 25 19
Tota! for Non-Executive Directors 272 - 35 307 134
Total for all Directors 1,325 219 237 1,781 1,498

* Messrs McEwan and Sharples left the Company on 30 April and 30 September 2001 respectively and Messrs Brooke and Coppin
both retired as Directors on 31 December 2001,

E000's Compensation for loss of office
Euan McEwan 7 324
John Sharples e e et e e e i e e o e e et e e e e o e e e 413
Total 747

The total emoluments in 2001 of Euan McEwan and John Sharples were respectively £414,000 (2000: £208,000) and £595,0C0
(2000: £228,000).

Included in Other benefits for John McDonough are relocation expenses of £35,750 and salary supplements in place of FURBS
contributions paid in respect of John McDonough of £73,473 (2000: not applicable) and Roger Rebinson £21,563 (2000: not applicable).

Contributions were payable to FURBS in respect of Chris Girling £41,760 {(2000; £37,023), Roger Robinson £21,824 (2000: £59,465)
and Euan McEwan £13,141 {2000: £46,289).

Whilst an Executive Director, Sir Neville Simms was not a member of the pension schemes cperated by Carillion. He instead received
a salary supplement equal to 25% of his basic salary which is included in Other benefits in the table above.

Executive pensions

It is the Company’s policy to offer membership of the Carillion 'B” Pension Scheme to Executive Directors and other senior employees,
This schieme was operational from 1 October 1999. The scherne is a funded, inland Revenue approved, defined benefit scheme

to which members contribute 5% of pensionable earnings. The main features are:

» pension payable at the normal retirement age of 60 (save in cases of i} health or early retirement)
« pension accrual rate for Executive Directors of 1/30th of final pensionable salary for each year of service targetting a pension

{at normal retirement age) of two thirds of final pensionable salary (subject to twenty years' service after which employee
contributions cease)

* increases to pensions in payment {in excess of the State Guaranteed Minimum Pension) in line with price indexation up to 5%
per annum

» life assurance of four times pensionable salary

« pensions payable in the event of ill health, and

« on death {in service or after retirement), spouse’s and/or dependent’s pension at two thirds of member's pension.
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Maximum pension benefits of two thirds of pensionable salary are offset by any pension benefits accruing from earlier
pension arrangements,

The current Executive Directors are subject to the Inland Revenue earnings cap and their pensionable salary is limited accordingly.
Executive Directars wha are subject to the earnings cap are provided with additional benefits by way of individual FURBS or a salary
supplement equal to the contribution the Group would have made to a FURBS. In alf cases, any contributions made to these
arrangements in respect of the year are disclosed separately above. As these additional arrangements are limited to the balance

of basic salary in excess of the earnings cap, bonus paid to Executive Directors does not count towards pension benefits.

The Company does not contribute to any pension arrangements of Non-Executive Directors.

Directors’ pensions
Pensions accruing during the year to Executive Directors in their capacity as Directors of Carillion plc are set out below.

Cash equivalent

Years of transfer value

pensionable Intrease in Total of increase

Age at service accrued pension accrued pension in pension

31.12.01 at 31.12.01 during year at 31.12,01 during the year

lohn McDonough . ... ... 318 318 32075
ChrisGiling M2 3295 6830 30878
Roger Robinson e 002 3952 36412 42,833
Buan McBwan e Y6 86 19334 14454
John Sharples 53 26 24,422 123,335 329,599

The figures above for Chris Girling in the 2000 accounts assumed 1/45th accrual rate. The figures above have been restated
to a 1/30th accrual rate.

Euan McEwan left active service on 30 April 2001 and retains a deferred pension of £19,334 as at the date of leaving.

John Sharples took early retirement from the Carillion ‘B’ Pension Scheme on 30 September 2001. His pension on that date, prior to
reduction for early payment was £133,335 per annum. After reduction, John Sharples’ pension {prior to commutation) was £109,334
per annum plus an additional henefit of £5,060 per annum.

Share incentive schemes

The Company operates four share incentive schemes to motivate employees and to encourage them to invest in the future success
of the Group. The Founders’ Equity Plan, the Executive Share Option Schemes and the Long Term Incentive Flan all have challenging
performance criteria. The Board believes that these schemes complement the strategy of achieving growth in shareholder value by
directly aligning the remuneration of the Executive Directors and senior employees to the interests of the shareholders. A Sharesave
Scheme also operates to give UK employees the opportunity to have a financial stake in the Company.

The Founders® Equity Plan (FEP) is a one-off scheme which was established as an incentive for those employees whao can contribute
most to increasing shareholder value. The Executive Directors and certain senior managers were invited to join the FEP and invest a
percentage of their basic salary in purchasing erdinary shares in Carillion plc. These shares, referred to as the Investment Shares, were
purchased at an average market price of 137.74 pence per share. The Investment Shares are owned and controlled by the individual,
who is free to choose whether to stay in the FEP or sell the shares at any time during the performance period. Where members of
the FEP dispose of an element of their Investment Shares, the oplions which they have been granted will be proportionately reduced.

For every Investment Share purchased, up to a maximum of four free shares can be awarded, subject ta Carillion’s share price
performance over a three year period. If the performance condition is not attained in full in the initial three year pericd, the
FEP members have the option to remain in the FEP and extend the performance period by one or two years. In this instance,
the performance condition is increased proportionately.

The initial performance period is the three years commencding 31 August 1999. The benchrnark share price against which
performance will be measured is 138 pence which was the mid-market price at close of business on 31 August 1999. At 31 August
2002, Carillion's average share price over the previous six weeks must have been at least 276 pence for the options to be exercisable
in full. If the share price does not reach 183.5 pence, the options will not be exercisable. If the share price increases in between
these two prices, options will become exercisable on a pro-rata basis. A nominal fee of £1 is payable cn the exercise of options.

At 31 December 2001, Executive Directors and senior managers held a total of 1,503,079 Investment Shares and options over
6,012,315 shares. Those options which have not been exercised by the tenth anniversary of their grant will lapse,

33 Remuneration Report Annual Report and Accounts 2001




Carillion plc .
Remuneration Report continued

The Sharesave Scheme
The Company has established a Sharesave Scheme which provides a savings and investment opportunity for employees in the UK.

The options may normally be exercised on completion of a three or five year savings contract, at a price equivalent to not less than
80% of the market value of the shares at the time of grant.

At 31 December 2001, options over 4,060,463 ordinary shares of 50p each were outstanding under this scheme, exercisable
on various dates up to June 2005 at an exercise price of 109.1p.

Executive Share Option Schemes
Share options have been granted to certain senior managers under two Executive Share Option Schemes. The options were granted

at an exercise price equal to the market value of the Company's shares at that date of grant. Executive Share Options have not been
granted to participants in the Founders’ Equity Plan.

Optiens under the inland Revenue Approved Executive Share Option Scheme 1999 {which carries certain tax advantages for

UK employees} and the Executive Share Option Scheme 1999 are exercisable normally between three and ten years after the date

of grant, subject to the achievement of the performance condition. The performance condition requires that the earnings per share of
Carillion over a rolling three year period must increase on a compound basis by at least four percentage peints more than the increase
in the Retail Prices Index over the same period. The aggregate value of options granted to an employee under the Executive Share
Option Schemes would not normally exceed their basic salary in any year without the prior approval of the Remuneration Committee.

At 31 December 2001, opticns were outstanding over 1,401,126 shares under both schemes at exercise prices ranging from

129.5 pence to 186.4 pence which may, subject to achievement of the performance condition, be exercisable for up to ten years
from the date of grant.

Long Term Incentive Plan

Conditional awards under the Long Term Incentive Plan are made to the Executive Directors and key members of senior management
closely aligned to Carillion's strategy, in recognition of the contribution that these individuals can make to the Group's success. There
is no subscription price for the shares, the award of which is conditional on the Company's performance during a three year period
in delivering total shareholder return against a comparator group of companies in the construction o services sector. The awards will
vest in full only if Carillion achieves first place. If the Company's ranking is the median, only 30% of the awards will vest. If ranking

is below the median, none of the awards will vest. It is intended that conditional awards under the Plan will be made annually,

At 31 December 2001, conditional awards were outstanding over a total of 4,103,880 shares,

Conditional awards made to Executive Directors under these plans are set out in the following table of share incentives. The awards
represent the maximum number of shares which could be awarded to Directors under the performance periods commencing

on 1 January 2000 and 1 January 2001. The monetary value of the conditional awards attributed to each Director were based
on their annual basic salary at 1 January 2000 and 1 January 2001 and the number of shares subject to the conditional awards

were calculated using the share prices of 113.3p and 120.3p, the average share prices over the last six weeks of 1999 and
2000 respectively.
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Share incentives of Directors of Carillion plc

As at
1 January
2001

Conditional
awards during
the year

Lapsed

At
31 December
2001

SirrNev_iI_I_e_ Si_m_ms
FEP (maximum)
LTIP {maxirmum)

o87zed

308,914

987364
308,214

John McDonough
LTIP (maximum)

. 270157

LTI Agreement {maximurm) - 191,041 - 191,041
Chris Girling e _ _
FEP (maximum) 580804 - 7 - 580,804
LTIP {maximum) 183,142 187,032 - 370174
Roger Robinson B e
FEP (maximum) 609842 - - 609,844
LTIP {maximum} 191,968  191.188 - 383156

383,156

Euan McEwan*

LTIP {maximum)

174,315

178,719

580804
275,561

i
77,473

John Sharples*

LTIP (maximurn}

191,968

191,188

254002
292,505

355,742
90,651

* Messrs McEwan and Sharples left the Group on 30 April and 30 September 2001 respectively.
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Remuneration Report continued

Additionally, on 9 January 2001, the Company entered into a Long Term Incentive Agreement with John McDonough. Under this
Agreement he was granted an award of 191,041 ordinary shares, conditional on the Company’s total shareholder return over a two
year performance period achieving certain levels relative to the total shareholder return achieved by a comparator group of companies
over the same period. If John McDonough's employment ceases for any reason during the performance period, his award will lapse,
unless the Remuneration Committee exercises its discretion to permit it to continue, or to vest early, in whole or part. In the event of
a change of contral or reconstruction of the Company during the performance period, the award will vest immediately, to the extent
that the performance condition has been satisfied. The award may be adjusted if there is a variation in the Company’s share capital.
The award is not pensionable.

This Agreement forms part of the arrangements under which John McDenough agreed to accept the position of Chief Executive,
and was designed to facilitate his recruitment.

It is intended that a grant under the Executive Share Option Schemes will be made to John McDonough in the period foliowing
the announcement of results for the year to 31 December 2001.

The number of options over Catillion plc shares held by Directors and former Directors of the Company under the Executive Share
Option and Sharesave schemes are detailed below:

Earliest

As at Granted As at date from

1 January during 31 December Exercise which
2001 the year Exercised Lapsed 2001 Price exercisable Expiry date
John McDonough
ESOS (maximum) — 501,930 - - 501,930 129.5p 09.01.04 09.01.11
Roger Robinson
Sharesave 2,699 - - - 2,699 109.1p 01.01.03 30.06.03
Buan MeEwan
Sharesave 2,699 — 1,432 1,267 Nil 109.1p n/a n/a

John Sharples

Sharesave 4,702 - - - 4,702 109.1p 30.09.01 30.03.02

Euan McEwan was able to exercise a propertion of his Sharesave option under the Scheme's early leaver provisions. At the date
Euan McEwan exercised his option, he had made a gain of £564.

There has been no change to the interests of Executive Directors in share incentives in the period 1 January to 13 March 2002.

Employee Benefit Trusts

An employee benefit trust has been established to acquire shares in Carillion pic and hold themn for the benefit of participants

in the Feunders’ Equity Plan and the Long Term Incentive Plan. At 31 December 2001, the Trust had acquired 4,736,226 Carillion
shares (2.23% of the issued share capital and a nominal value of £2.4 million) in the open market for a consideration of £6.0 million
(2000: 3,236,226 Carillion shares (1.54% of the issued share capital and a nominal value of £1.6 million) at an open market
consideration of £3.0 million). The market value of the shares held at 31 December 2001 was £6.6 million (2000: £4.0 million).

For details of dividends paid to the empioyee benefit trust see Note 15 to the Accounts on pages 58 and 59.

Additicnally, a Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust (QUEST) has been established to operate in conjurction with Carillion in
providing shares to employees under its Sharesave Scheme. At 31 December 2001, the QUEST held 1,572,765 Carillion plc ordinary
shares at a subscription price of 117.5 pence per share, to enabie it to satisfy, as and when required, options granted under the
Sharesave Scheme. The QUEST elected to waive all dividends in excess of 0.01 pence per share. The market value of the shares held
by the QUEST at 31 December 2001 was £2.2 million {2000: £1.9 million}.
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Directors’ share interests
Ordinary shares

The Company's register of Directors’ interests, which is open to inspection at the registered office, contains full details of Directors’
shareholdings and share incentives. The beneficial interests of the Directors and their immediate families in the ordinary share capital of

the Company are shown below:

As at As at 31
1 January December
Fully paid 50p ordinary shares owned: 2001 2001
Executive Directors .. .
John McDonough e....T . ...200000
Chris Girling 145,200 145,201~
Roger Robinson 173,248 175,078*
Non-Executive Directors S .
Sir Neville Simens 416473 427,041
Roger Brocke ' 6(5,000 7 60,000
Alan Coppin L. 22500 22,500
ROgEr DICKeNS e e ., 22,043 22,043
Jean-Paul Parayre 208,021 153,349
Andrew Parrish O 01 o1 “16,'1-01

* Including all Investrent Shares acquired under the Founders’ Equity Plan.

There has been no change in Directors’ interests in the period 1 January to 13 March 2002.

The dosing mid-market price of Carillicn shares at 31 December 2001 and the highest and lowest mid-market prices during the year

were as follows:

Share Price

31 December 200
Low

__140p

. 205.5p (30 March 2001)

124p (2 lanuary 2001)
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Report of the Directors

The Directors of Carillion plc present their annual report, together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2001.

Principal Activities and Business Review

The Carillion Group is one of the UK’s leading support services and censtruction groups, operating throughout the UK and in a
number of overseas regional markets.

A review of the Group’s businesses and financial performance is contained in the Operational Review on pages 16 to 21.

Analyses of turnover, results and net assels by business segment and geographical location are given in Note 2 on page 50.

Profits and Dividends

The consolidated profit and foss account is shown on page 42. The profit on ordinary activities before taxation amounted

to £35.0 million {2000; £13.0 million}. An interim dividend of 1,38 pence per ordinary share (2000: 1.34p} was paid in November
2001 and it is proposed 1o pay a final dividend of 3.02 pence per ordinary share {2000: 2.78p) on 28 June 2002 to shareholders

on the register at the close of business on 3 May 2002. The payment of these ordinary dividends amounts to £8,9 million
{2000: £8.6 million).

The Directors have resolved 1o ne longer offer the scrip dividend alternative, with immediate effect. The Board believes this fo be in
the best interests of the Company as it will avoid the dilutive effect of issuing new shares under the scrip dividend scheme. A dividend
reinvestment plan (CRIP) will however be offered commencing with the 2001 final dividend. Details of the DRIP are contained in
‘Shareholder Information’ on page 76.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during 2001 are shown on page 32 of the Remuneration Report. Biographical details for each Director
at 31 Decemnber 2001 are given on pages 4 and 5.

John McDonough was appointed Chief Executive on 1 january 2001 and was elected at the Annual General Meeting held
on 16 May 2001.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Chris Girling and Andrew Parrish retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election. Andrew Parrish is a member of the Remuneration, Nominations and Audit Committees and has a fixed

term of appointment with the Company. Chris Girling has a contract of service which is subject to two year's notice of terminaticn
by the Company.

The interests of the Directors and their families in the share capital of the Company are shown in the Remuneration Report on pages
35to 37.

Employees
Information refating to employee numbers and remuneration is given in Note 6 on page 54,

Empioyees are key to achieving Carillion’s business strategy and the Group is committed to improving their skills through training

and development and nurturing a culture in which employees feel valued for their contribution and are motivated to achieve their
full potential,

In addition, Carillion’s core values have been developed to emphasise the changing working practices required to succeed in an
environment where partnership and integrated solutions are becoming the norm. These values of openness, collaboration and mutual
dependency have been developed with input from both customers and employees.

It is policy for every employee to be treated with respect and dignity in a culture of equal opportunities in which personal success
and the associated rewards depend on merit and performance, People with disabilities receive the same consideration as others
with regard to recruitment, retention and personal development. Employees who become disabled are, wherever possible, retrained
or provided with equipment so that they can continue their employment,
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Carillion places great importance on open and regular communication with employees through both formal and informal processes.
As part of this commitment, a Group newspaper, ‘Spectrum’, is produced on a regular basis for all employees. Involvement in the
Group is also encouraged through means such as the periodic grant of share options under the Sharesave Scheme which gives all
UK employees the opportunity to have a financial stake in the Company.

Carillion seeks to involve all employees in its leading edge programmes to integrate safety into everything it does and to improve
its environmental performance, including the understanding and application of the principles of sustainability. Further information
on Health and Safety, the Environment and Community is given in the Sustainability Report on pages 22 to 25.

Substantial Share Interests

At 13 March 2002, the Company had received formal notification of the following substantial interests in the ordinary share capital
of the Company:

Number of
shares held Percentage
Fidelity Internaticnal Limited and its direct and indirect subsidiaries 29721234 = 1397
Schroder Investment Management Limited 27954841 1314
b'iageo Pension Trust Limited . 7,8"83,1"70 371

Policy for Payment of Suppliers
It is the policy of the Graup that each business agrees terms and conditions for transactions with its suppliers and for payment to
be made on those terms providing the suppliers meet their obligations to the businesses’ satisfaction. The Group as a whole therefore

does not apply a general recognised cede with regard to the payment of all suppliers. The Company does not have any trade
creditors.

Charitable and Political Contributions

Payments for charitable purposes made by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2001 amounted to £123,06C
(2000: £77,000). The Company and its subsidiaries made no political donations during the pericd under review.,

Annual General Meeting

The notice of and related information on the Company’s Annual General Meeting to be held on 15 May 2002 is included in separate
documents posted to shareholders with this annual report and accounts.

Auditor

A resolution to reappeint KPMG Audit Plc as auditor and te authorise the Directors to determine their remuneration will be proposed
at the forthcoming Annual General Mesgting.

By order of the Board
RF Tapp

Secretary
13 March 2002
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Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and Group and of the profit or loss for that period. In preparing those financial statements, the Directors
are required to:

o select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

e state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements.

The Directors are responsible far keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and 1o enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985, They
have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to themn to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent
and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Carillion plc

We have audited the financial statements on pages 42 to 72.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report. As described on page 40, this includes responsibility for preparing
the financial statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards. Our responsibilities,

as independent auditars, are establishad in the United Kingdom by statute, the Auditing Practices Board, the Listing Rules

of the Financial Services Authority, and by our profession’s ethical guidance.

We repart to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the Directors’ report is not consistent with
the financial statements, if the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received ali the information

and explanations we require for our audit, or if infarmation specified by law or the Listing Rules regarding Directors’ remuneration
and transactions with the Group is not disclosed.

We review whether the statement on pages 28 to 30 reflects the company’s compliance with the seven provisions of the Combined
Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules, and we report if it does not. We are not required to consider whether the Board's
statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's corporate
governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

We read the other information contained in the Annual Repaort, inciuding the corporate governance statement, and consider whether
it is consistent with the audited financial statements. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test hasis, of evidence relevant to the ameunts and disclosures in the financial statements, it also includes

an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the Directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overali adequacy of the
presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group

as at 31 December 2001 and of the profit of the Group for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985,

KPMG Audit Plc («-%\l@’( O‘c./

Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor

13 March 2002
Birmingham
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Consolidated Profit and

Loss Account
for the year ended 31 December 2001

2001 2000
Before
Note Before Exceptionat exceptional items Exceptional Total
exceptional items as restated itemns as restated
items {see Note 3) Total (see Note 14) (see Note 3) (see Note 14)
fm fm £fm Em tm £m
Total turnover 21,8898 - 1,889.8 19090 - 1,909.0
Less: share of Jomt ventures' turnover 2 (191 0) - (191.0) (223.4) - (223.4}
S 1,698.8 - 1,698.8 1,685.6 - 1,685.6
T T s lgmss - e
Acquisitions 71.2 - 71.2 - - -
Group turnover 16988 0 - 16988 1886 - - 1,6856
Cost of sales (1 556. 4) - (1 556. 4) 1 542. 9) (25.0) (1 567 9)
Gross profit - 1424 - 1424 1427 (25.0) 17.7
Administrative expenses (115 1) 2.9 (1 24. 0) (1 15. 3) (5.0) (120 3)
Group operating profit/{loss) = 273 (8.9) 18.4 274 130.0) (2.6)
Continuing operations 208 {8.9) 119 274 (30.0) {2.6)
Acquisitons LA e 65 i e N i s
Share of operatlng proflt
in joint ventures 2 21.1 (1.2) 19.9 17.8 (2.0) 15.8
Total operating profit 2 484 (10.0) 383 452 32.0) L
Result/proflt on sale of busine es 3 - - - A 3.1
Net |nterest recelvable/(payable) o o
Group R 0.3 - 0.3 (1.5) - {15)
Jointventures 4 | (36) - (3.6) (1.8) - (1.8)
(3.3) - (3.3) (3.3) - (3.3)
Profit on ordinary activities
before taxation el PiLL 882 o 3o o 49 @8 130
Tax on proflt on ordmary activities 8 (14 5) 3.3 (11.2) (13.8) 9.2 (4. 6)
Profit on ordinary activities
after taxation ..., 306 68 238 281 (197 . 84
EqU|ty minority interests (3.1 - {3.1) (1.0) - (1.0
Profit for the financial year 275 (68 207 271 (97 ... .74
Equity dividends 10 (8.9) - (8.9) (8.6) -~ {8.6)
Retained profit/{loss) for the Group
and its share of joint ventures 24 18.6 (6.8) 11.8 185 (19.7) (1.2)
Earnings per ordinary share 11
- Basic 13.4p (3.3p) 10.1p 13.3p (9.7p) 3.6p
- Diluted 13.3p (2.3p) 10.0p 13.3p (9.7p) 3.6p
Dividends per ordinary share 4.4p 4.12p
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

Note

At
31 December
2001

£m

AL

31 December
2000 as restated
(see Note 14)
fm

Fixed assets
Intanglble assets
Tangible assets N
Investments in jOInt ventures

Share Of gross et S e o

Share of gross liabilities

13

LA

428
58

‘I6
471

572.0
(516.7)

Loan advances

15

55.3
5.5

517.5
(485.8)
317
17.3

27

490
1.9

Total investments

63.5

50.9

159.3

99.6

Current assets
Stocks o
Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand '

9.4

8

46.4
5174
8.0
843

729.8

656.1

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Borrowmgs

(678.3)

Other credltors

(16.3)
(584.0}

(723.5)

(600.3)

Net current assetsl(llabllltles)
Due W|thm one year

Debtors due after more than oneyear

(24.9)
31.2

36.1
19.7

6.3

55.8

Total assets less current liabilities

165.6

155.4

Creditors: amounts falling due after more thanoneyear

BO”OW'”QS [,
Other creditors

20 e
@8

(8.6)

(190
(6.8)

{13.2)

(25.8)

Provisions for liahilities and charges

22

{5.8)

0.9}

Net assets

146.6

128.7

Financed by:

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital
Share premium account

Revaluation reserve
Merger reserve

Brofit and |055 account e e e e e 4 e e

B
S S

4
24

24

82

Cage

063

105.3
3.0
0.1
82
191

Equity shareholders’ funds
Equity mlnonty interests

a3

3.3

127.7
1.0

146.6

128.7

The accounts on pages 42 to 72 were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 March 2002 and were signed on its behalf by:

John McDonough Chief Executive

j.@muﬁ\,\
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Company Balance Sheet

At At
MNote 31 December 31 December
2001 2000
£m fm

Fixed assets e
Investrents in subsidiaries a4 1474 1129
QOther investments 15 2.7 17
150.1 114.6

Current assets

Debtors due withinoneyear

Cash at bank and in hand

o

1.2

2002

1869
16.0

205.4

202.9

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Borrowings

L
L soy

Other creditors (177.0) (123.6)

(217.1}) {179.2}
Net current (liabilities)/assets (11.7) 23.7
Total assets less current liabilities 138.4 138.3

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

20

Borrbwings = G55
Net assets 1384 1304

Financed by:

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital

23

1053

Share premium account L 24 %3 30
Profit and loss account 24 26.8 12.1
Equity shareholders' funds 138.4 120.4

The accounts on pages 42 to 72 were approved by the Beard of Directors on 13 March 2002 and were signed on its behalf by:

John McDonough Chief Executive

J M@Su‘w\zu.ém
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Carillion plc
Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement

Year ended Year ended
Note 31 December 31 December
2001 2000 as restated
(see Note 14)
£m £m

Net cash |nflowl(0utflow) from operating actlvmes - _ __2_8(_a) 538 (64 6)
Dw:dends received from joint ventures _ 13 8 79
Returns on |nvestments and servicing of flnance
D|V|dend pald to minority |nterests o (0.8) -
F|nance e c'harges B e e e o ©2) o
Interest received o 5.0 5.2
Net cash outflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance (0.5) (0.8)
Corporate taxatlon pald S o '(i._3)_ - ("I_.]Z)
Capital expendlture and fmanqal |nvestment ' o o
Payments to acqulre current asset |nvestments o o o o B - (1.4) (2.7)
Payments to acqulre flxed asset |nvestments . I S {0.3) (0.2)
Purchase of own shares by ESOP - {3.0) (3.0}
Sale of tanglble fixed assets 6.9 2.0
Net cash outflow from capital expenditure and financial investment (159)  {(12.)
Acqumtuons and dlsposals - S - - o
Purchase of busmess a o o o T o ié’(é) (31.3) -
o of busmesses e e e e e e : é("b} o1 34
Equlty |nvestment . jOInt ventures e e e e et e et e 29(a) (17.6) G2
Loan repayments by/(advances to) Jomt ventures B 2.6 (6 ﬁ
Net cash outflow from acquisitions and disposals L@1.2) (6.9)
Equity dividends paid ‘ ' - (5.3) - (4.6)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) before management of liquid resources and financing B 2.4 (82.3)
Management of liquid resources T
Decrease/(lncrease) in short term dep05|ts S a2z (03)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from management of liquid resources 28(c} 4.2 (0.3}
Financing
Repayment of finance leases ‘ ' 28(0) (1.9} (0.8)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing (1.9} 5.6
Increase/{decrease) in cash in the year 28(0) 4.7 (77.0)
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Consolidated Statement
of Total Recognised Gains
and Losses

2001

Profit for the financial year

10.9

Exchange movements

207
0.5

Total recognised gains and losses for the year

21.2

Reconciliation of Movements in Consolidated Equity Shareholders’ Funds

2001
£fm

2000
fm

Profit for the financial year
Group

Joint ventures

10.9

68

10.2

Dividends

207

P

7.4

e

Scrip dividend alternative

Exchange movements

T dar ari.sing on e ofshares toQUEST it e e o et 2ttt o ot o o

LT A

(1.2)

37
1.0

e

Net addition to equity shareholders’ funds

Opening equity shareholders’ funds

156

127.7

32
124.2

Closing equity shareholders’ funds

1433

127.7
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Notes to the Accounts

1. Principal accounting policies
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in relation to
the Group’s financial information set cut herein,

Basis of accounting
The financial information has been prepared under the historical cost convention, medified to include the revaluation of certain
tangible fixed assets comprising land and buildings, and in accordance with applicable UK accounting standards.

On adoption of Financial Reporting Standard (FRS} 18 'Accounting policies” the Directors have considered the accounting policies and
believe them to be the most appropriate policies for the Group.

Basis of preparation

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries drawn up to 31
December 2001. Unless otherwise stated the acquisition method of accounting has been applied. Under this method acquired
subsidiaries are included from the date of acquisition. Disposals are accounted for up to the date control passes to a third party.

Joint arrangements
Where a Group company is party to a joint arrangement, that company accounts directly for its share of the revenue and expenditure,
assets, liabilities and cash flows. Such arrangements are reported in the consolidated financial statements on the same hasis.

Joint ventures

The Group’s joint ventures are accounted for under the gross equity method. The principal joint ventures of the Group are set out
on page 74.

Investments
Investments are stated at cost less provisions for impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goedwill arising on acquisitions, being the difference between the fair value of the purchase consideration and the fair value of the
identifiable net assets of an acquired company or business, including an interest in a joint venture, is capitalised and amortised in
equal annual instalments over its useful econamic life. Prior to 1 January 1998, goodwill was written off to reserves on acquisition.
In accordance with the transitional provisions of FRS 10 "Gooedwill and intangible assets’, this treatment has continued to be applied
for those years. Any such goodwill previously written off to reserves is included in the calculation of any profit or loss on disposal in
respect of businesses subsequently disposed of or terminated.
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Carillion plc
Notes to the Accounts continued

Long term contract balances
Amaounts recoverable on contracts, which are included in debtors, are stated at cost plus attributable profit less any foreseeable
losses. Payments received on account of contracts are deducted from amounts recoverable on contracts in debtors or long term

contract balances in stock. Where such amounts have been received and exceed amounts recoverable, the net amounts are included
in creditors.

Profit recognition

Profit on long term contracts is calculated in accordance with accounting standards. In determining the attributable profit

on contracts 1o a particular accounting period the Group utilises estimation technigues. The principal estimation technique used

is the preparation of profit and cash flow forecasts on a contract by contract basis which enables an assessment to be made

of the final out turn on each contract. Profit is then recognised when the outcome of the contract can be foreseen with reasonable
certainty and is attributed in line with the degree of completion of each contract.

The resuits for each year includes settlement of claims on contracts completed in prior years. In preparing contract forecasts,
a prudent and reasonable evaluation of daims is included in the assessment of the final out tum.

Property development profits are recognised on contractual completion.

Turnover

Turnover represents the net amount receivable, excluding value added tax, for goods and services supplied to external customers.
In respect of long term contracting activities, turnover reflects the value of work executed during each year. It also includes the
Group's proportion of work carried out under joint arrangements during the year.

Stocks
Stocks and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes appropriate overheads.

Tangible fixed assets

The Group has continued to follow the transitional provisions of FRS 15 Tangible fixed assets’ to retain the book value of freehold
land and buildings which were last revalued in 1985. Depreciation is based on historical cost or revaluation, less the estimated
residual values, and the estimated economic lives of the assets concerned. Freehold land is not depreciated. Other tangible assets
are depreciated in equal annual instalments over the period of their estimated economic lives, which are principally as follows:

Freehold buildings 50 years
Long leasehold land and buildings 50 years
Short leasehold land and buildings Period of lease
Plant, machinery and vehicles 3-7 years

Leased assets
Operating lease rental charges are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the iife of each lease.

Assets held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts are inciuded in tangible fixed assets and are depreciated over the shorter
of the contract term or their useful life. The capital element of outstanding finance leases and hire purchase contracts is included

in creditors. The finance charge element of rentals is charged to the profit and less account at a constant periodic rate of charge
on the outstanding obligations.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the result for each year and takes into account deferred taxation, calculated using the liability
method. Deferred tax assets or liabilities are only recognised to the extent that timing differences are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Foreign currencies

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling and recorded using the contracted exchange rate.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are transiated into sterling at the exchange rates ruling at
the relevant balance sheet date and the gains and losses on translation are included in the profit and loss account.

The accounts of averseas undertakings and joint ventures are translated into sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the relevant
balance sheet date. Gains or losses arising on the translation of the opening net assets of such overseas undertakings are taken
to reserves together with exchange differences on related foreign currency borrowings.

Share incentive schemes

Where share options are granted with an exercise price of less than the market price at the date of grant the difference is charged to
profit and loss account over the period to the exercisable date of the options. Due regard is made to the likelihood of the stipulated
performance criteria being attained with the charge being amended accordingly.

No cost is recognised in respect of SAYE schemes that are offered on similar terms 1o all or substantially all ermnployees as permitied
by UITF 17 "Employee Share Schemes'.

Pensions

Regular pension ¢osts in respect of the Group’s defined benefit pension schemes are established in accordance with the
recommendations of independent actuaries and are charged to the profit and loss account based on the expected pension costs aver
the employees’ service lives with the Group. Current actuarial surpluses or deficits are amortised over the average expected remaining
service lives of current employees on a systematic basis. The difference between the amounts charged or credited to the profit and
loss account and the contributions made to the pension schemes is included within debtors or creditors as appropriate. Contributions
to the Group’s defined contribution schemes are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred.

On adoption of FRS 17 'Retirement benefits’, the Group has followed the transitional provisions at 31 December 2001 as disclosed
in Note 3C.

PPP bid costs
Where the Group has been selected as preferred bidder for a PPP project and where, in the opinion of the Directars, the project

is reasonably certain to achieve its financial close in the next twelve months, those costs estimated to ke refunded on completion
are included in stocks.

Interest
Interest is written off to the profit and loss account as incurred by all subsidiaries in the Group.

interest incurred on borrowings within the Group’s joint ventures relating to the construction of assets in PPP projects is capitalised
until the relevant assets are brought into aperational use.
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Notes to the Accounts continued

2. Analysis of turnover, operating profit and net assets
As described in the Financial Review on page 26 the definition of segments has been amended to bring the Group’s reporting in line
with most of cur peers and to bring greater consistency and clarity to the way the Group reports its results by reflecting all activities

of a similar nature in the same segment.

Class of business

Total turnover
2001 2000
£m fm

Net assets/(liabilities)
2001 2000
fm Em

investments

Business services
Construction services

Internal trading

Net cash

A9 . 258

6093 5249
13389 14s7S
G T

287 129
459 50
294 505
T R

51.6 50.8

1,889.8 1,909.0

146.6 128.7

Geographical origin:
UK

Europe e e

Other
Net cash

157 ST

1509 1573

%652 1786

069 787
22y (92

Lne o 384
51.6 50.8

1,889.8 1,909.0

146.6 128.7

The analysis of turnover by gecgraphical market served is not materially different from that by geographical origin.

Operating profit

Before
exceptional
operating
items

£m

2001

Exceptional
operating
itens

£m

Before

exceptional

operating

Total items
£m fm

2000

Exceptional
aperating
items Total
fm £m

Investments
Business services

Cbrporalte centre

53

Construction senvices

223

P

(5.0)

LB

5, 49

e 2T
(14.2) {(8.2)

- 4.9
(30.0) (4.3)
- (382

48.4

(10.1)

38.3 45.2

(32.0) 13.2

UK

Geographical origin:

Europe -

Other

e

5.6

_(.1)

R U R

L0629

s6 73

- 7.3

48.4

{10.1)

38.3 4572

(32.0) 13.2

Total turnover and operating profit of the Business services segment disclosed above includes turnover of £71.2m and operating
profit of £6,5m arising solely in the UK relating to the post acquisition trading of GT Railway Maintenance Hoidings Limited and
its subsidiaries which was acquired on 26 September 2001 {see Note 29). Cost of sales and administrative expenses for the same
period amounted to £62.6m and £2.1m respectively.
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The Group's share of the turnover and net assets in joint ventures was as follows:

Turnover Net assets/{liabilities)
2000 2000

2001 as restated 2001 as restated
Class of business fm fm £m fm

Investments . R e . . A7 st 334 15T
Busimessservices ... ... ... 82 188 - 83
Construction services - S o - - 461 79.2 274 275.70
o é}m’tradin'g‘ b - - - - . e (7';'6)" - .._(.9.7.) e L 8T

191.0 223.4 60.8 49.0

Geographical origin- _ . N _

UK ... te74 1761 562 452
CBuwope et 7 @3 29
Other 14.5 40.2 8.9 6.3

191.0 2234 60.8 49.0

The Group’s share of the operating profit in joint ventures was as follows:

2001 2000
Before
Before exceptional
exceptional Exceptional operating Exceptional
operating operating iterns operating Total
items items Total as restated fterns as restated
Class of business £m £m £fm £m £m £m

Investments . ... .. 14 - ... Ma 21 T 2]
Businessservices 87 - 57 &1 Q0 6]
Construction services ' B 5.0 h (1.2) o ”3."8 - 46 I 4.6

211 (1.2) 19.9 17.8 (2.0 15.8

Geographical origin:
UK 24 (12 189 150 (0 130
Fuope 03 - .83 o7 - 07

Furcp T

211 {1.2) 19.9 17.8 2.0) i5.8
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3. Exceptional items

2001 2000
Gross Tax Gross Tax
Group fm £m £m fm

Operating items:

Exceptional cost of sales . |

Provision against contract losses in Crown House Englneermg ' . ' _ - - 250 _ ' ' _(:7':71')

Exceptional administrative expeNses

'Réorgahisétion costs ' ' 8.9 .7 5.0 {1.5)
&89 300 8

Reorgamsa‘non costs 1.2 - 2.0 {0.6)
wi o Qan 320 62

Non-operating items: S e e

profiton sale of businesses . 63 - 6D -

Provisions against retained contracts 53 (1.6) - -
10.1 (3.3) 28.9 {9.2)

4. Net interest receivable/(payable)

2001 2000
Group £m fim

Interest receivable;

Bank interest receivable 7 - S ) 2.7 31

Other interest receivable S X o X
4.8 3.7

nterest payable: e
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts @41 @48
Other interest payable (0.4) {0.4)

(4.5) {5.2)
Net interest receivable/{payable) 0.3 (1.5)

Other interest payable includes finance lease charges of £0.2m {2000: £G.1m).
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2001
Joint ventures £m

2000
fm

Interest receivable:

PP projects | . . - s e

Other joint ventures o o 06

58

1.1

12.1

Interest payable:

PPP pl’OJECtS (net of |nterest capltallsed) _ ., ) o - S _ o (149) -

Other joint ventures S {0.8)

(15.7)

Net interest payable (3.6)

P PN
g ol M

ool~NiNo

Interest payable by joint ventures on PPP long term projects relate to non-recourse borrowings as detailed in Note 14.

The Group's share of interest capitalised by joint ventures on PPP long term projects amounted to £10.2m (2000 £9.3m).

5. Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2001
£m

2000
tm

Depreqatlon of tanglble flxed assets , 12.5

Profit on Sa'e of Tanglb'e fixedassets . N

Amwmmmndownmm%,”“.MUHMMJ,”mffifmmffffjffl[fgff]jffff]jf”;ﬁ?dffo[]

Operating leases.
Hire of plant and maCh'”eW e e e e N
-Shortterm 304
T LO”Q term - e e i 0.8

Hieofotherassets . 18

AUdItOF S remuneratlon

137

03

0.1

269

0.7

152

0.8

Audit fees for the parent company included in the above amounted to £23,500 (2000: £23,000). Fees paid to KPMG Audit Plc
and its associates in 2001 for UK non-audit services (principally taxation advisory services) amounted to £0.4m (2000; £0.4m).

53 Notes to the Accounts Annual Report and Accounts 2001




Carillion plc
Notes to the Accounts continued

6. Employee numbers and payroll costs

2001 2000
Number Nurnber
The average number of employees including Directors during each year comprised: S -
Investments el DT EINpIoyees LUy Lirestors, Lat - .. - . i s
BUS'“ESSSEW!CES 'T ... 637 3800
Corporate centre 268 247
13,709 12,602
Cversans T, S e e e 279_ BT 3 e
13,709 12,602
The aggregate payroll costs during each year amounted to:
2001 2000
£m fm
Wages and salaries v . 2887 2700
Social secunty costs o ) o ) o ) - - - o o B - - 351 ) ) 33 0
pg rion Costioradity T T e e e T
327.9 3021

Other pension cost/(credit) represents amounts in respect of the Group’s UK and overseas schemes. The net credit of £0.9m in 2000

includes a £4.3m credit in respect of the principal UK schemes which results from the surpluses identified from an independent
actuarial review of the schemes. As described in Note 30, no such credit has been recognised in 2001.

7. Directors’ remuneration

Detalled information concerning Directors’ remuneration, including their pension benefits and long term incentive arrangements, is set

out in the report on remuneration and related matters on pages 31 to 37.

8. Taxation

2001 2000

£m £m

Coporation taxat 30% (2000:30%) a5 gy
Transfers tof(from} deferred tax e 08 08
Attnbutable taxatlon of joint venturesr , o ) ' ) o - o - 54 - 3.8
Pnor year adJUStme”tf‘_. e - . . .. o . . R
- Corporat[on tax N _ ) ) . ' (0.3) (0.7
— Transfers to deferred tax ' o I . " ‘ I 22 1.2
Jotal UK taxation 10.2 19
Current year - N S 09" 2.6
Prior year adjustments B ‘ ' ' ) 0.1 0.1
Total overseas taxation 1.0 2.7
Total tax on profit on ordinary activities 11.2 46

The tax charge for the year ended 31 December 2001 was increased by £1.2m (2000: £1.1m}) relating to permanent tax disallowable

expenditure and reduced by £0.4m {2000: £0.4m) relating to overseas profits not taxable and differences in overseas tax rates.
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9. Profit for the financial year
In accordance with Section 230 {4} of the Companies Act 1985 the Company has taken advantage of the exemption from the
requirement to present its own profit and loss account. The profit for the financial year of the Company is £23.6m (2000: £13.2mj,

10. Dividends

2001 2000
£m fm

Eqmty shares
nterim 1.38p per share paid 0009 3ap) T g g
 Final 3.02p per share proposed (2000; 2.78p) . . 6.2 5.8
Dividends waived (see Note 15 and remuneration report on page 125 S (0 1) -
8.9 8.6

11. Earnings per ordinary share

{a) Basic

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders, amounting to £20.7m {2000: £7.4m) by
205,485,587 (2000: 204,212,811) ordinary shares being the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year excluding
those held by the Employee Share Ownership Plan {(see Note 15) and the QUEST (see remuneration report on page 36).

{b) Adjusted
A recongiliation of the basic earnings per ordinary share to the adjusted amounts shown on the face of the profit and loss account
is calculated below to show the impact of all exceptionat items (as disclosed in Note 3):

2001 Pence 2000 Pence
£m per share fm per share
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders - o 27 1014 74 3.6

Exceptlonal |tems . . R _— . = L
Result/proflt on sé[é - busmesses B - | e e T S . (3 1) e (1 5)
Less taxation in respect of the above B B o B (2.3) - (1.6)'" - (9.2) - (4 5}
275 13.4 271 13.3

(c) Diluted

Diluted earnings per ordinary share have been calculated on both of the above bases, using the same earnings numerators as set out
in {a} and (b) above and by reference to the following number of shares:

Carillion pl¢
Number of ordinary shares

2001 2000

m m

Number of ordinary shares per basic earnings per share calculations o 2055 204.2
Adjustments to reflect dilutive shares under option N S 13 -
Number of ordinary shares per diluted earnings per share calculations 206.8 204.2
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12. Intangible assets

Goodwill
Group £m
At 31 December 2000 S - - o 1.8
Addition B ' B ' - 417
At 31 December 2001 435
Provision for year o ) ' ' " " O 5
At 31 December 2001 0.7

At31 December 2001 42.8
At 31 December 2000 1.6

The addition to goodwill relates solely to the acquisition of GT Railway Maintenance Holdings Limited as disclosed in Note 29. The
geodwill relating to this acquisition is being amortised over 20 years as in the apinion of the Directors this is the minimum period over
which the Group will derive economic benefit from the acquisition.

Goodwill at cost of £1.8m at 31 December 2000 relates to the acquisition of the mincrity interests in the Group's French subsidiaries
in 1998, The goodwill relating to this acquisition is being amortised over 20 years.

13. Tangible fixed assets

Plant,
Land and machinery
buildings and vehicles Total
as restated as restated
Group £fm fm £m

COSt Or va]uatlon e we e e e e e i e e e e B 1T T T LTt L LT T T Ty
At31December2000 228 455 683
Exchange rate adjustments_ o4 (O 4)

!

Acquisitons ... .. ... ... 09 92 101

Addiions otz 168 181

Disposals {3.6) (24 4) (28 O)
At 31 December 2001 21.3 46.8 68.1

Depreciation: _ - - 7 o 7

A December2000 o agg g

Exchange rate adjustments - - , - o - —._' ) B (0 3)" o (0. 3)
Frovision for year S _ o o 0 9 11 6 12 5
Impalrment S ' o o o . 2 5 o 1.0 o 35
Eliminated in respect of dlsposals ‘ o T 08 C(21.2) (21.8)
At 31 December 2001 5.2 9.9 15.1

At 31 December 2001 16.1 36.9 53.0
At 31 December 2000 20.4 26.7 471

Included in the net bock vzlue of plant, machinery and vehicles is £5.4m (2000: £1.5m} in respect of assets held under finance leases
and hire purchase contracts, Depreciation for the year in respect of these assets amounted to £0.9m (2600: £C.4m).
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The net book value of land and buildings comprise:

2001 2000
Group fm fm
Freehold R R e 96 149
longleasehold . 38 33
Short leasehold 2.7 2.2
Net book value 16.1 204
The cost or valuation of land and buildings comprise:
2001 2000
Group fm fm
Cost e e e e e e e e e 200220
1985 valuation 1.1 11
21.3 22.8
The 1985 valuation was on the basis of open market value for existing use.
Freehold land held by the Group amounting to £1.6m {2000: £2.4m) has not been depreciated.
14. Investments
Equity
Loans investments Total
as restated as restated
Group £m £m £m

'"vestmen_ts_iniPi_n_t VentUres
At 31 December 2000 o 17.3 20.0 37.3

Repayment Of Ioans o o o (2.6) o it ‘ (2 6)
L becomrng . sub5|d|ary e e e e e e e (92) g ..._(0 )
At 31 December 2001 5.5 46.7 52.2

Share of post acquisition results:
At 31 December 2000 S 11.7 11 7

Exchange ad;ustments - . - N e e e 02 - 0 2
Share of results for the year after taxat|on . . - 109 10 9
Dividends paid N U ) B .
Transfer on becoming a subsidiary ' ' (0.4) 0.4
At 31 December 2001 8.6 8.6
Net book value: S o o S o S
At 3 December 2001 S - - o 55 553 o 608
At 31 December 2000 17.3 31.7 49.0

Following the cormpletion and settlement of certain power and process contracts of the kind the Group no longer undertakes, it has
been determined that the joint ventures involved were acting as agent for the principal companies and therefore the contracts should
be accounted for as joint arrangements. As a result, the joint venture balances have been reclassified primarily into stock, debtors
and creditors with the comparative figures adjusted accordingly The profit and loss account and cash flow statement have aiso been
restated. This reclassification has no effect on the Group's profit or net assets for either the current or preceding year.

The Group’s agagregate share of the joint venture net assets are analysed below. The borrowings within PPP Projects totalling
£463.6m (2000: £369.4m} are without recourse to the Carillion Group.
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14. Investments {continued}

Other
Other joint ventures Total
PPP Projects  joint ventures Total PPP Projects 2000 2000
2001 2001 2001 2000 35 restated as restated
£fm £m £m £m £m im
Fixed assets e Ma9 221 w70 609 348 957
Cash o aots a7 Mod2 1392 721464
Other current assets - 2971 337 3308 1948 806 2754
Share of gross assets 513.5 58.5 572.0 3%4.9 122.6 5175
Borowings dve withinoneyear (113 Q@& (121 65 @4 09
Other creditors due withinone year (151 (48 (399) (153 @26  (079)
Borrowings due afteroneyear @523 (08 @31 (69 08 @115
Other creditors due afteroneyear (@1 (1.8 (19  ©7  ©3 {10
Provisions ) 68 2 (29 9.7) (19 (5.6) (7.5)
Share of gross liabilities (485.6) {(31.1) (516.7) {387.3) (98.5) (485.8)
27.9 27.4 55.3 7.6 241 3.7
Loan advances 5.5 - 5.5 8.1 9.2 17.3
Share of net assets 334 27.4 60.8 15.7 33.3 49.0

Fixed assets and other current assets within PPP Projects include cumulative capitalised interest amounting to £6.5m (2000: £5.4m)
and £23.8m {2000; £14.7m) respectively.

2001
Company fm
'nvestm_ent_s__i_n subsidiaries
Acqu|s|t|on B e e e e e e s S 34 S
At 31 December 2001 147.4

The principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated undertakings which are included within these accounts are shown on page 74.

15. Other investments

Group Company

Other Own shares Total Own shares

£m £m £m £m

At 31 December 2000 o - - ) - 7 02 30 32 ) 3.0

Additions e e e R S

At 31 December 2001 0.5 6.0 6.5 6.0
Prowsnonslamortlsatlon o o o - o o o

At31December2000 - 13 13 13

Amortlsatlon nyear . - B | N R e SRR R PR

Provision in year ) I - - - 05 - o5 L

At 31 December 2001 0.5 33 3.8 3.3

At 31 December 2001 ' o - - 27 27 2.7

At 31 December 2000 0.2 1.7 1.9 1.7
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The investment in own shares represents shares in the Company held by the Carillion Employee Share Ownership Plan {ESCP},
an employee share ownership trust, which may subsequently be awarded to Executive Directors and senior employees under the
Founders’ Equity Plan and the Long Term Incentive Plan. Details of the plans are given in the Remuneration Report on pages 31 to 37,

During the year the trust acquired 1,500,000 shares in the Company for a consideration of £3.0m. At 31 December 2001 the trust
held 4,736,226 (2000: 3,236,226) shares in the Company with a market value of £6.6m (200C; £4.0m}.

The trust has elected to waive all dividends except for a total payment of 1p at the time each dividend is paid.

The purchase cost of the shares is charged to the profit and loss account so as to spread the cost aver the relevant performance
period of the plans. Caests of administering the trust are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred.

The ESOP trust is regarded as a quasi subsidiary under FRS 5 and its assets, liabilities and results are consolidated into the financial
statements of both the Company and the Group.

16. Stocks
2000
2001 as restated
Group £m £m
" Land for development ... o0& 04
Other raw materials - o ' o - 17.3 1009
17.7 11.3
Long term contract balances: e e e e e
Net costless foreseeablelosses .. ... 6% 23
Workinprogress —other 209 320
Finished geods and goods for resale 0.9 0.8
53.4 46.4
17. Debtors
Group Company
2000
2001 as restated 2001 2000
£m £m fm fm
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade debtors o ama s o
Amounts recoverable on contracts S S h "‘246‘97 7 ' 2727 ) N - =
Amounts owed by aoup undertakmgs S e e S g
Amounts owed by joint ventures S 19 184 - -
Amounts cwed under joint arrangements _ ' S _ ' N I 298' 305 _ [
Other debtors - . o 138 124 27 09
Prepaymentsandaccrued|ncome . e o 348' ..214 R
Deferred taxation asset (see Note 22) . 18 75 -
541.3 4977 204.2 186.9
Amounts falling due after more than one year S _ o o B
Trade debtors S 7 ' 7.4 27 o L
Amounts recoverable on contracts . - 101 o '9 6 -
Other debtors | | e e e R SR e
Pension prepayment e T 1
31.2 19.7 - -
Total debtors 572.5 517.4 204.2 186.9

In respect of the Group, other debtors include pension prepayments in respect of the Shared Cost Sections of the Railways Pension
Scheme amounting to £3.6m {2000: £C.3m) in less than one year and £9.2m {2000: £2.3m} after more than one year.
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18. Current asset investments

2001 2000

Group £m £m
Listed investments - 0.7 0.7
Unlisted investments 8.7 7.3
9.4 8.0

Listed investments comprise Eurotunnel units and warrants which had a market value at 31 December 2001 of £0.8m (2000: £0.7m).

19. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Company
2000

2001 as restated 2001 2000
fm fm £m £m
Bark loans and overdrafts o 429 J56 401 556
Net obhgatrons due under finance leases 2.3 0.7 - -
Borrowings o452 e300 556

Payments recerved on account o S
iong term contracts . 926 47 2_ o - -

Other
Trade credrtors
Brlls of exchange payabE

Amounts owed to group urrdertak ngs .

Amounts owed to joint ventures

Amounts owed under ;omt arrangements ]

7.8

L3001
e

13.0

Fao -

B
125 -

Corporatlon fax o - ) 83 ‘IS '-‘ - -
Other taxation g socral securrty costs e ‘. e e e 348 e 316 S _‘ e
Proposed dividend B .62 58 62 58
Cther creditors o _ - 48. 4 581 '();'2. -
A S T
723.5 600.3 2171 179.2

20. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Company

2001 2000 2001 2000
£m fm £m fm
Bank loans - 17.9 - 17.9
Net obirgatrons due under frnance Ieases 45 I 1 1 T ”—- o -
Borrowings 46 190 - 17.9
Trade creditors . 46 38 - -
Amounts owed under Jom‘r arrangements e e _0 3 g T
Aecrial and deferred o e G e T
13.2 25.8 - 17.9

All of the above creditors are payable within five years of the respective balance sheet dates.
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The above bank loans are repayable as follows:

Group Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
fm fm £m m
Between one and two years - 17.9 - 17.9

Interest is charged on the above bank loans at floating rates linked to LIBOR,

All bank loans and overdrafts are unsecured.

21. Finandial instruments

The main purpose of the Group’s financial instruments is to provide finance for its operations, The Group's principal financial
instruments, other than derivatives, include bank loans and overdrafts, cash and short term deposits. In addition, varicus financial
instrurnents, for example trade debtars and trade creditors, arise directly from the Group’s operations. The Group’s principal derivative
transactions relate to forward foreign exchange contracts.

The Group's policies with regard to finandial instrurnents have remained unchanged throughout the year.

The Group’s treasury department manages the main financiat risks within policies and operating parameters approved by

the Beard, which are discussed in detail below and are designed to reduce the financial risks affecting the Group. The Group’s
treasury department does not enter into speculative financial transactions. The Group's main financial risks are funding and liquidity
risk, interest rate risk and currency risk.

Funding and Liquidity
The financial assets and liabilities of the Group may be summarised as follows:

2001 2000
Weighted Weighted
average average
period until peried until
maturity of Assets Liabilities maturity of
Assets Liabilities liabilities as restated as restated lizbilities
fm fm years £m fm years

Nl COUp N,
Sterling ... 716 58 19 A2 4.3 1.9

Canadiandollgrs 73 04 15 85 - -
Other - . 2.6 24 15 33 25 s
17.8 86 138 143 5.8 1.8

Floating rate:

CSterling L LLLLu9s oA Aee s
Canadian dollars o 131 _ 172 ' 10.0 181
Eurocurrenues ) s " e R EEREEEEEO B |
e R T B
94.4 42.9 83.1 335

Fixed rate:

Jsterling LT85 oA
kuro currencies -~ - 02 o .02
Other - 0.2 - 0.2
_ 6.9 - 18
Total 112.2 58.4 97.4 221

Summary by currency

Sterling e, B30 294 451 207 .
Canadian dollars I 20.4 176 - 165 181
E_Ljfd'cu'r'réﬁéiés'_ S I .. 22 ss T e ae
Other N ' 16.5 26 213 2.7

Total 112.2 58.4 97 .4 421

61 Notes to the Accounts Annual Report and Accounts 2001




Carillion plc
Notes to the Accounts continued

21. Financial instruments {continued)

The Group’s financial assets, which exclude short term debtors and pension prepayments, consist primarily of cash at bank, and on
deposit which eamn interest at money market related rates. The financial assets on which no interest is earned are primarily trade
debtors and amounts recoverable on contracts, which are expected to be received in more than one year.

The Group's financial liabilities, which exclude short term creditors, are set out above. No interest rate swaps or caps have been
entered into by the Group. Fleating rate financial liahilities primarily comprise bank borrowings that bear interest based upon money
market or base rate related interest rates. Fixed rate financial liabilities comprise finance lease and hire purchase contract liabilities.

The Group's consolidated cash position at the balance sheet date is not representative of the position at other times of the year. Whilst
material working capital movements and the resultant cash flows are a significant feature of the Group's cash profile throughout the
year, a number of factors combine to exaggerate the year end position. Such factors include a reduction in the demand for working
capital over an extended holiday period, shorter daylight and therefore working hours and a traditional industry fecus on the
settlement of contractual claims.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group's debt is predaminantly short-term and related to working capital movements. No interest rate hedging is currently
undertaken,

Currency Exposure

The Group has smalt and infrequent transactional currency exposures, Group policy requires net exposures to be hedged using forward
contracts or currency optichs as soon as a contractual commitment is made. The Group’s policy is to hedge, where practical, at least
50% of the net asset value of overseas investments where such net assets exceed £10m equivalent. This hedging is currently achieved
through currency borrowings and forward contracts. There were no material unrecognised gains or losses on instruments used for
exchange rate hedging either during or at the end of the year.

The Group's currency exposures are;

Net foreign currency monetary assets/{liabilities)

Sterling US Dollars Irish Punts Danish Kr Other Total
Functional currency of Group operation £m £m fm fm fm £m
At 31 December 2001 . e e e
Serlng ... ... .~ v ez 73 (07 68
Eurocurrencies D T
Othar R T 73 B R 73
Total - 7.2 0.3 7.3 0.7} 141
At 31 December 2000 e e e
Seding ... ..-=......9%7 _ 9of 06 11 25
Euroﬂcprlren‘c]eﬂs o N i S e T ” e | o _ " .T - _
Other 01 42 = - = 43
Total 0.1 49 0.1 0.6 1.1 6.8

A1 31 December 2001 the Group had forward foreign exchange contracts in place for the sale of US$17.3m which acts as a hedge
for assets denominated in currencies linked to the US dollar.
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The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities, other than short term creditors such as trade creditors and accruals,
is as follows:

Other

Finance financial
Overdrafts Loans leases habilities Total
£m £m fm fm fm
Between twoand fveyeas - - 28 25 53
Between one and two years - ' h - - 1.8 6.1 7.9
More thanoneyear e T T A6 86 132
Less than one year 25.7 17.2 2.3 - 45.2
25.7 17.2 6.9 8.6 58.4
At 31 December 2000 - o - - - B S 7
Between two and fiveyears - - 04 17 2]
Between one and two years' o - o - 378 07 5.1 237
Less than one year o o 15.6 - O 7 - ' 16 3
15.6 17.9 1.8 6.8 421

In addition, there were the following undrawn facilities, with an average maturity of 0.5 years in respect of which all conditions
precedent had been met:

2001 2000

fm fm

Expiring in one year or less RS L2 SN
Expiring in one year or Iess (but extendlble by two years at the Groups optlon) . o o 43.5 435
Sxpiring betven o o e yoars R
140.3 115.6

In January 2002 new facilities totalling £145m were put in place which mature in 2005. Facilities totalling £110m have been cancelled.
The new fadilities, in addition to continuing existing facilities of £23.5m, now gives the Group access to committed credit facilities
totalling £168.5m with maturities between 2004 and 2005. If the borrowings at 31 December 2001 are compared with the new
facilities, there would be undrawn facilities with an average maturity of 2.8 years.

Fair Values

Credit exposures on financial instruments arise through short-term deposits and foreign exchange hedging. Such transactions are
executed only with highly credit rated, authorised counterparties based on ratings issued by the major rating agencies, Counterparty
exposure positions are monitored regularly,

The bock and fair values of the Group's financial instruments at 31 December 2001 and 31 December 2000 are not
materially different.
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22. Provistons for liabilities and charges

Deferred Other

taxation provisions

fm fm

At 31 December 2000 A S
Exchange rate movement on -
Transfer from:préﬂt andrlo'ss ac_c.ouht - 26 89
Acquisitions D3
Expenditure in year o - (4.0)
At 31 December 2001 {1.9) 5.8

Deferred tax arising from acquisitions represents the combination of the book value of deferred tax at acquisition together with that
elerment of the provision for deferred tax at fair value attributable to the acquisition of the remairing 51% of the share capital of

GT Railway Maintenance Holdings Limited as described in Note 29.

Other provisions comprise redundancy and property exit costs arising from the Business Improvement Programme which are expected
ta be utilised within six months in respect of redundancy costs and twa years in respect of property exit costs.

Deferred taxation included within debtors:

2001 2000
Asset recognised £m fm
Accelerated capital allowances e OB
Other timing differences (2.2) (7.5)
(1.9) (7.5
2001 2000
Asset not recognised fm frm
Accelerated capital allowances L. 6o 45
Other timing differences (17.0) {19.8)
{22.0) (24.3)
The deferred tax asset is included within debtors (see Note 17).
23. Share capital
2001 2000
£m fm
Authorised e
Equity: 325,000,000 ordinary shares of 50p each 162.5 162.5
Mominal
Number Value
m £m
Allotted, called up and fully paid e
At 31 December 2000~~~ C 217 1053
Scrip dividend alternative 2.0 1.0
At 31 Decemhber 2001 212.7 106.3
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Details of options granted to Directors and employees, under the Company’s share option schemes during the year are set cut in the

Remuneration Report on pages 31 to 37.

0On 29 June 2001 1,221,272 ordinary shares of 50p each were issued at 186.6p following the scrip dividend alternative offered to
shareholders in respect of the 2000 final dividend. Cn 16 November 2001 697,742 ordinary shares of 50p each were issued at 13C.6p
following the scrip dividend alternative offered to shareholders in respect of the 2001 interim dividend. In addition 78,014 ordinary
shares of 50p each were issued at various times throughout the year at 109.1p in respact of the sharesave scheme.

24, Reserves
The movements on reserves are summarised as follows:

Share

premium Revaluation Merger Profit and

account reserve reserve {oss atcount Total
Group fm £m £m fm £m
At 31 December2000 ... 3% ... ev 82 w224
Exchange rate movements ST P = TN Ut
Retained profit for the year T T T 1B 118
Scrip dividend alternative 23D T T (23
Transfer - (0.1 - 0.1 -
At 31 December 2001 5.3 - 8.2 235 37.0

Cumulative goodwill written off to reserves at 31 December 2001 amounted to £124.1m (2000: £124.1m). The merger reserve arose

on the demerger from Tarmac plc on 29 July 1999,

Share

premium Profit and

account loss account Total
Company fm fm £Em
At31 December 2000 L3011
Retained profit for the year LT e 14.7
Scrip dividend alternative 2.3 - 2.3
At 31 December 2001 5.3 26.8 321
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25, Other guarantees and contingent liabilities

Group Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
£m £m fm £m

Guarantees in respect of borrowings of subsidiaries, joint ventures
and joint arrangements - - 7.0 -
Guarantees in respect of deferred equity payments
in PPP jaint ventures 6.3 9.3 6.3 9.3
Guarantees in respect of letters of credit issued by banks in respect of
deferred equity payments in PPP joint ventures 9.8 12.2 9.8 12.2
Group

Guarantees and counter indemnities have been given to financial institutions for performance and other contract related bonds that
are issued in the normal course of business.

Claims under contracts and other agreements, including joint arrangements, are cutstanding in the normal course of business.
The Group in the normal course of its construction activities is the subject of certain legal proceedings, which are regarded as unlikeiy
to succeed or to have a material effect on the Group's financial position.

Company

Carillion pic has issued performance guarantees in respect of its subsidiaries, joint ventures and joint arrangements in the normal
course of business.

26. Financial and capital commitments

2001 2000
Commitments for capital expenditure £m £m
Contracts placed 3.9 0.2
2001 2000
Commitments for investments fm fm
Equity and subordinated debt in PPP jont ventures . 11 210
Other fixed asset investments - 03
16.1 213
2001 2000

Land and Land and
buildings Other buildings Other
Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases fm fm fm fm
Annual commitments expiring: e
Withinone year ..M 2 s 18
In second to fifth year inclusive .26 9T N3 32
Qver five years 5.3 - 47 -
8.9 11.8 7.5 7.1
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27.Related parties
Group joint ventures

Sales and purchases between the Group and its joint ventures amounted to:

2001 2000
£m fm
Sales to Group joint ventures 2145 118.5
Purchases from Group joint ventures 7.0 9.7
The debtor and creditor balances between the Group and its jeint ventures are disclosed in Notes 17 and 19 respectively.
28._Cash flow notes
(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow/{outflow) from operating activities
2000
2001 as restated
£m £m
Group operating profit before exceptional items 273 774
Depreciation g proft belure exceplio L e : 12 5 13 7
Inpairment of tangrble f'.xed assets - o o 3_:5_ -
Profit on drsposal of fixed assets (1.1) (O 3)
Decrease in market value of Irsted current asset |nvestments I — _ o1
Amortrsatron of goodwrll o o5 0 1
Amortrsatron of own Shareé - o 7 7 7 2.0 7 -
Provrsron agamsi ot'ner frxed asset rnvestments : ” S - - e 05 .
Decrease in provisions o _' - o o - {3.0)
Decrease in stocks l. e e e e e e e e e e e 01 e __.1_.3.5
Increase in debtors e 1) (60)
Increase/(decrease) rn credrtors due wrthln one year o ' 258 N (‘l 10 3)
Increase in credrtors due after more than oneyear B 0.1 A‘ . ,1:?
Increase in bills of exchange ' 0.6 0.8
Net cash mflow/(outflow) from operating activities. before exceptronal |tems - - 60.6 (62.8)
Exceptlonal operating cash spend e (6. 8 (18
Net cash inflow/{outflow} from operating activities 53.8 (64.6}
(b) Analysis of changes in net funds
As at Exchange As at
1 January 2001 rate 31 December
as restated Cash flows Acquisitions movements 2001
fm fm £m £m fm
Cash at bank and in hand ) . B 594 14.8 - 0.1) 74.1
Bank overdrafts S O 15.8) o - R )
7 . 438 4.7 - ©.1) 48.4
Short term deP@S___it__S e X- B v B 03 204
Bank loans ) R (V4 - - 07 (172
Net funds 49.0 2.4 {7.0) 0.3 44.7
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{c) Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds

2000
2001 as restated
im £m
Increase/(decrease) in cash and bank overdrafts 47 (77.0)
(Decrease)/mcrease in short term deposrts - (42) R
Cash |nﬂow from drawdown of debt - (6.4
Cash outﬂow from finance leases 1.9 0.8
Movement in net funds resulting from cash flows 24 (823)
Finance Ieases of subssdrary undertaklngs acquwed -
Exchange rate movements = A )
Other non-cash movements h - ‘ - {0.3)
Movement in net funds in the year _ (43) o (80 9)
Net funds at 1 January 49.0 129.9
Net funds at 31 December a4.7 49.0
29. Acquisitions and disposals
(a) Acquisitions
The Group made equity investments amounting to £17.6m (see Note 14) in the following PPP joint venture companies:
£m
Group 4 Carllllon (Onley) lelted - 07
The Hosp[tal Company (Swnndon & Marlborough) Holdlngs lelted 1. 7
Town Hospitals (North Staﬁords 're) Holdings .|1_|m|teq_” o o O 5
UK nghways M40 (Holdrngs} Li |téd - o - " ) _‘8 8
UK Highways AS5 (Ho\dmgs) Limited o 59
17.6

Cn 26 September 2001, the Group acquired the remaining 51% of the issued share capital of GT Raifway Maintenance Holdings

Limited {GTRM).

The summarised profit and loss account of GTRM and its subsidiaries for the period 1 April 2001 to 26 September 2001 was as follows:

fm
Turnover 140.9
Operating profit 7.5
Net interest receivable 06
Profit before taxation _ 8.1
Taxation - (2.4)
Profit after taxation 5.7
Preceding financial year ended 31 March 2001 — profit after taxation 13.8

Details of the acquisition are summarised below:

Fair value to

Fair value the Group of

Book value adjustments 100% of GTRM

fm fm fm

Tangible fixed assets 10.1 - 101
Stocks o 80 - 8.0
Debtors due W'.’r'nm one year ' 504 73 57 7
Cash | L322 - 32
Credltors due wrthln one year (82.6) ©3) {82'9)
Crednors due after ‘more than one year ) S (6. 2 - (6.2)
Deferred taxation " 2 19 @
Net liabilities {19.2) 5.1 (14.1)
Group share of net ilablhtres acqulred (51 %) (7.2)
Goodwili arising on acquisition B 417
Fair value of consideration 34.5
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The fair value adjustments principally relate to a re-assessment of the Company’s share of its pension scheme surplus.

Pricr to becoming a subsidiary, GTRM was accounted for as a joint venture. In accordance with FRS 2 ‘Accounting for Subsidiary
Undertakings’, and in order to give a true and fair view, goodwill arising on acquisition has been calculated as the difference, at

the date of each purchase, between the fair value of the consideration paid and the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
attributable to the interest purchased. This represents & departure from the statutory methed, under which goodwill is calculated

as the difference between cost and fair value on the date GTRM became a subsidiary undertaking. The statutory method would not
give a true and fair view because it would result in the Group's share of GTRM' retained reserves during the period that it was a joint

venture being recharacterised as goodwill. The effect of this departure is to reduce retained profits and goodwill by £16.1m.

The total consideration of £34,5m was satisfied in cash and includes costs associated with the acquisition of £0.5m,

The effect of the above acquisition is disclosed in the cash flow statement as follows:

Consideration paid in respect of GTRM 345
Cas'n“ac”qUi'réd' T 53
Cash outflow in respect of acquisitions per cash flow statement 313
GTRM and its subsidiaries made the following contribution to cash flows from the date of acquisition to 31 December 2001:

Em
Net cash outflow from operating activities o {0.3)
Net cash outﬂow from returns on |nvestmen“[s and serwcmg of f nance _ B (@)
Corporate taxatlon pa|d _ - (08)
Net cash outfiow from caplta! expendlture and flnanoal |nvestment A ' 3. 1
Net cash outflow from financing o ©D
Decrease in cash (4.5)
(b) Disposals
During the year the Group disposed of Carillion Housing for censideration of £5.3m before disposal costs,
Details of the disposal are summarised below:

£m
Book value of net assets disposed:
Stocks O IR EeaEs MPeEY. "'(06)
Debtors S " @. 5)
Creditors B 53
Net liabilities disposed . 0.2
Fair value of con5|derat|on (net of d|sposa| costs) """ 5.1
Provisions agaxnst retained contracts (5.3)
Result on disposal -
Cash inflow in respect of disposals per cash flow statement 5.1

Consideration received of £5.1m is stated net of disposal costs of £0.2m.

Carillion Housing did not have a material impact on the operating results and cash flows of the Group.
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30. Pension arrangements
Carillion operates a number of pension schemes in the United Kingdom for eligible employees. The main defined benefit schemes are:

The Carillion Staff Pension Scheme
The Carillion ‘B' Pension Scheme

The Carillion Public Sector Pension Scheme
Shared Cost Sections of the Railways Pension Scheme

Carillion Staff and ‘B' Pension Schemes

Actuarial valuations of the above schemes were undertaken by Carillion’s independent actuaries as at 31 March 2000. The projected
unit method was used and the key actuarial assumptions were:

% per annum

Staff Scheme ‘B* Scheme
Long term rate of investment return ‘ 7 6.0 7 Y
General salary and wage inflation . . ... 50 60
P'ehsi(')n' i-ncreas'emrétﬂe‘ o - o I - 7 " N 3.0~ N 3.0

The market value of the schemes’ assets at this date were £443m and £114m, the value of which represented approximately 127%
and 140% of the henefits that had accrued to members at that date, after allowing for assumed future increases in earnings. Having
kept the funding position under regular review, the Group continued to suspend its contributions to the schemes throughout the year
ended 31 December 2001.

Statement of Standard Accounting Practice (SSAP) 24 *Accounting for pension costs’ requires that the cost of providing pensions

is recognised over the period benefiting from the employees’ services, with any differences between the charge to the profit and loss
account and the contributions paid to the schermes being shown as an asset or liability on the balance sheet. The pension cost has
been assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries using the assumptions below:

% per annum

Staff Scheme ‘B’ Scheme
Interestrate . g e . U - 75
PenS|on i.hcreés'é"rate o o o . o . " ' l " 2.5 V 3.0

Variations in costs have been spread over the estimated average remaining working lifetime of the members of each scheme. The
total pension credit in respect of these schemes during the year under review was £nil (2000: £4.3m).

Based on the actuarial valuation dated 31 March 2000 and under the provisions of a SSAP 24, the Group is able to take a credit
to the profit and foss account for the current year of £3.6m. However, having taken actuarial advice following the fall in equity
markets during late 2001, the Directors do not consider it appropriate to take a credit or a charge to the prefit and loss account
for the year ended 31 December 2001. An interim valuation of the schemes will be carried out at 31 March 2002.

Carillion Public Sector Pension Scheme

This scheme was established to accept transfers from Public Sector schemes where the Group tenders for Public Sector outsourcing
or PPP contracts. It is generally a condition of such tenders that the contractor must offer pension arrangements for the employees
concerned which are "broadly comparable’ to those provided in the public sector. The last formal valuation was carried cut by
independent actuaries as at 31 December 2000. The attained age method was used and the key actuarial assumptions were:

Long term rate of investment return 7%
Increases to pensionable salaries 5%
Real investment return above pay increases 2%
Real investment return above price inflation 4%
Increases to pensions in payment (in excess of GMPs} 3%
Price infiation 3%
Real pension increases abgve price inflation 0%

At 31 December 2000 the market value of the schemes’ assets was £65.2m, which represented approximately 135% of the benefits
that had accrued to members at that date, after allowing for assumed future increases in earnings. The employer contributes to this
scheme at the rate of 14% of pensionable salaries. The contributions paid during 2007 were £1.9m (2000: £1.8m).

Shared Cost Sections of the Railways Pension S5cheme

Ermployees of GTRM and Centrac who were previously employees of British Rail have pension provision via Shared Cost Sections of
the Railways Pension Scheme. The Railways Pension Scheme is an industry wide scheme administered by Pensions Management
Limited on behalf of the Railways Pension Trustee Company Limited. As GTRM was previcusly a joint venture with Alstom, members
of the GTRM section only passed to Carillion in October 2001,

70 Notes to the Accounts Annual Report and Accounts 2001




Carillion plc

Shared cost arrangements are such that the employer and members share the cost of future service liabilities on a 60/40 split and
any surplus emerging over time is dealt with on a similar basis. The current funding rate of these Shared Cost Sections is 12.5% split
7.5% and 5% between the employer and scheme members respectively. This is a reduced rate and is being subsidised by existing
surpluses in the Shared Cost Section. This appreach is in common with the majority of the Shared Cost Sections of the Railways
Pension Scheme. The contributions paid by the employer during 2001 were £0.8m for GTRM and £0.1m for Centrac.

Independent actuaries appointed by the Railways Pension Trustee Company Limited carried out a formal valuation of the Railways
Pension Scheme at 31 December 1998 using the attained age methed and a discounted income basis using the following key
financial assumptions:

Return on investments 6.75%
Pay inflation 4.50%
Increases in pensions and State basic pension increases 3.00%
Dividend growth 3.75%

The value of the assets of the GTRM section at the valuation date was £230.9m. These were adjusted to an actuarial value
of £193.0m which represented 116% of the past service liabilities (taking account of future salary increases).

The value of the assets of the Centrac seciion at the valuation date was £34.9m. These were adjusted to an actuarial value
of £29.3m which represented 115% of the past service liabilities {taking account of future salary increases).

The SSAP 24 charge in respect of these sections was £1.5m in respect of GTRM and £0.4m in respect of Centrac.
The next full valuaticn is due as at 31 December 2001.

Other UK and overseas schemes

The Group also operates two UK defined contribution schemes, the Carillion Operatives Retirement Plan and the Carillion Services
Retirement Plan, both of which are closed to new entrants. Benefits similar to those previously offered through these arrangements
are now provided via stakeholder pension schemes, For construction operatives, the stakeholder pension operated by the Building
and Civil Engineering Trustee Limited is used. Employees may participate on a minimal fevel but for those who are prepared

to commit to a percentage of salary, the Company will match an employee contribution rate of 2% of earnings (up to the upper

earnings limit each year) for the first five years of membership and 3% thereafter. Death in service lump sum benefits are provided
in addition.

Employees of Carillion Services who are not eligible for other Carillion schemes are invited te participate in the Carillion Stakeholder
Plus rmanaged by Merrilt Lynch Investrnent Management. Employees contribute 5% and the employer 6.5% of basic salaries. Death
in service lump sum benefits are provided in addition.

Membership of the Carillion Stakeholder on a non-contributory basis by the employer is open to any Carillion employee subject
to the requirements of the Infand Revenue on concurrent membership of pension schemes.

The Carillion Group operates a defined benefit scheme for empioyees of Carillion Canada Inc which is managed locally.

Contributions to these schemes during 2001 were £0.3m {2000: £1.6m) in respect of defined contribution schemes and £nil
in respect of the Canada scheme.

FRS 17 Retirement Benefits

Whilst the Group continues to account for pension costs in accordance with SSAP 24, under FRS 17 ‘Retirement benefits’
the following transitional disclosures are required.

The principal assumptions used by the independent qualified actuaries in providing the FRS 17 pasition as at 31 Decernber 2001 were:

Rate of increase in salaries 3.75%
Rate of increase in pensions 2.50%
Inflation rate 2.50%
Discount rate 5.80%

The market value of the schemes assets, which are not intended to be realised in the short term, may be subject to significant change
before they are realised. The present value of the schemnes liabilities are calculated by reference to the investment return on grade
AA corporate bends. The assumptions used do not necessarily represent the investment return that may be achieved.
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The assets in the schemes as at 31 December 2001 were:

Expected Staff B’ Public Sector

rate of return Scheme Scheme Scheme GTRM Centrac Canada Total

Y% £m £m £m fm £m fm £m

Equities 725 T 2610 667 458 7333 278 101 6453
Government bonds ' 475 530 137 B 12 9 20.2 386 5.8 - 109.2
Corporate bonds  5.75 605 153 T -2
A B A e OER e
Market value 374.9 957 636 2945 365 162 8314
Present value of scheme liabilities  (360.0) (82.0)  (580)  (221.00 (334 (11.8) (766.2)
Surplus Y 56 735 37 44 1152
Shared Cost Sections - - - (29.4) (1.2) - (30.6)
Total surplus 14.9 13.7 5.6 441 1.9 4.4 84.6
Related deferred tax liability (25.4)
Net pension asset 59.2

If FRS 17 had been adopted in full in the financial statements, the Group’s net assets and profit and loss reserve at 31 December 2001

would be as follows:

fm
Net assets per balance sheet e Na68
SSAP 24 prepayment reversed (net of related deferred tax) {13. 9)
Rewsed net assets excludlng pension asset 132.7
Net pension asset T '59.2
Net assets including pension asset 191.9
Profit and loss reserve per balance sheet S 235
SSAP 24 prepayment reversed (net of related deferred tax) o h o . (13.9)
Rewsedprpfrlt and 10515”.rgser\(emexcluci!r.]gﬂ pension reserve - 96
Pension reserve . 59.2
Profit and loss reserve including pension reserve 68.8
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2000 1999 1998 1997
2001 as restated as restated as restated 25 restated
Profit and loss account fm £m £m fm £m
Total turnover ~1,8898 715090 = 18023  1,8661 = 17959
Less: share of Jomt ventures turnover (191 0) (223 ti) (192 6) 17‘1 1) (733 7}
Group turnover 1,698.8 1,685.6 1,609.7 1,695.0 1,6062.2
Group operating profit/{loss) o )
Operating profit before exceptlonaI |tems - 27.3 27.4 2438 21.0 22.8
E.X.‘:?Ptf?”?'..f’..p?r?t'”g .'.t.‘?ms...... e (8.9) (30.0) (1.5) {4.5) —’
| 184 e 233 65 28
Share of operating profit in joint ventures:
Operating profit before exceptional items 211 17.8 18.0 22.0 7.8
Exceptional iterns o o . (1.2) (2.0} - (1.4) -
Total operatmg proflt ‘ - 383 132 43 371 306
Result/profiton sale of businesses =31 - . o
Net interest rece:vab!e/(payab e) ' ' h ‘ ‘ '
Group 0.3 (1.5) (3.7} {16.9) {11.6)
Joint ventures (3.6) {1.8) (2.5) 0.7 0.2
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation _ 35.0 13.0 351 19.5 19.2
Tax on proflt on ordlnary actlwtles S S (11 2) o (4 &) o (116) - (13;6)' S (5 4)
Equ|ty mincrs Sho G T he e e o)
Profit for the financial year 20.7 7.4 236 5.8 13.6

Balance sheet

Intang{ble assets e e o e e e e et e s

Tanglble assets o
Investments in jomt ventures:

428
230

.”"iéfff;fm
RAN

605

863

Share of gross assets 572.0 517.5 2759 259.0 146.9
Share of gross liabifities (516.7) {485.8) (259.8) (223.6) (147.7)
55.3 31.7 16.1 354 (0.8)
'lﬁeé_ri‘égi\_-'_éh_cue“s .‘ e st 73 107 e 136
B 608 490 358 398 128
Other lnvestments o o227 1 e
Working capital {55.3) (29.0) - (101.5) {160.9) {129.5)
vestments - S Ty 5 AR 6 o D
o and leldends . e e e e (12 6)” e 02 e P
Cash (net) - 516 508 1322 1354 787
152.4 129.6 128.1 110.9 87.5
Shareholders’ funds and minority interests 1466 1287 1242 1670 482
Provisions for liabilities and charges 5.8 0.9 39 39 39.3
152.4 129.6 128.1 110.9 875
Operating ratio o o L .
Opera‘clng proflts on turnover % 2.0 0.7 ' 2.3 2.0 1.7
Gearing % NN NN
Interest covered by operatlng proflt trmes ' 11.6 4.0 6.7 21 27
Dividend cover times 23 09 29  na  na
Share 1nformat|on B e 57 AL & S L
DIVIdE'ndS per ordlnary share o _ . 44p 4 12p 4,0p. n/a n/a
Earnlngs per share on pubfrshed earmngs _ o 10.1p 3 ép ' '_'__‘I"I;'S'p' _ ' ' _n/a n/a
Adjusted earnings per share (excludmg exceptronal items) ) "13.4p ) 13, 3p - 1'2".0p ) ' n/a n/a
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Principal subsidiaries, associated undertakings
and joint ventures

All subsidiary, associated undertakings, joint ventures and joint arrangements are incorporated in Great Britain and, except where
shown, aperate in the UK. All holdings are of ordinary shares and except where shown, all subsidiary undertakings are 100% owned
and all associated undertakings, joint ventures and joint arrangements are S0% owned. Shares of those undertakings marked with

an asterisk are directly owned by Cariliion plc.

Principal subsidiaries undertakings

Nature of business

Avery Hill Develapments Hcldings Ltd
Carillion BTP S.A (France)
Canllron Canada nc (Canada)

Canllaon (Canbbean) Ltd (Tr|n|dad & Tobago)

Canlllon Constructlon Ltd*

Carllhon Fleet Management l_td*

Carillion H|ghway l\/lamtenance Ltd*

Canllron Private Flnance Ltd*

Carlllron Servrces Ltd* ‘

GT Rarlway Marntenance LtdT o ) S
Monteray Ltd 51% ) -
Postworth Ltd* ) S
Schal lnternatlonal Management Ltd* N

Stanger Asia Ltd*

The Expanded Plllng Company Ltd*

The Markfield Group Lud*

Facility management services
~ Building and civil engineering S
_ Constructron and lnfrastructure ser\.flces S
‘.lConstructron and |nfrastructure services '

Constructlon and infrastructure management i o

" ‘ Agent for hlre and lease of vehlcles _ -
_ :Roads and ground mai ntenance and repalr o " -
~Holding Company for PPP prorect companies
. "Facrlrty management servrces
~Maintenance of rallway |nfrastructure o
- Property and faC|I|ty management servrces
-Supp ly of operatwes to the construct:on |ndustry
- Constructron and prorect management o
o Envrronmental consultancy services
Contract pllmg and assoaated Works

Insurance broktng

T Annual accounts made up to 31 March.

Principal joint ventures & associated undertakings
Public Private Partnerships

Accommodation Services (Holdings) Ltd o 40% o S
Arrow L|ght Rarl Holdrngs d S 125% ' - . "

Educatlon Care & Dlsopllne ud i o o -

Educatlon Care & Discipline Three Ltd

Group 4 Carrllron (Fazakerley) Ltd

Group4Car|II|on (Onley) Ltd - ) S

The Hosprtal Company (Darenth) Holdrngs Ltd N o 7 ‘30% ) -

The Hospital Company (Swindon & Marlborough) Holdrngs Ltd. . 333% .- e
TOW” Hosp'tals (North Stafford-“h“e) Holdings Ltd - o
Town Hospitals (Southern General) Holdrngs Ltd o ) S ' '

UK Court Senrrces (Manchester) Holdrngs Ltd ) _33 3%__'"_ I

UK Highways AS5 (Holdings) Ltd S 50% "

UK Highways M40 (Holdrngs) Ltd 50% '

Others

Al Futtaim Tarmac (Pte) Ltd (UAE} AQU**

Maxxrom i T e

P) Wal < (Crv'.l) Ltd (lreland)

BT (Bridgend) Ltd e
Star Site plc* . C33% - e
Tarmac Alawr LLC (Oman) 459% B - o o "

TBV Power Ltd S

Weaverbndge Ltd 339

** Tarmac retain an indirect business interest
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Carillion plc
Principal joint arrangements

Proportion of
Name interest held

Address of principal place of business

CAMBBA Construction Group 25%

Carilion-URS Joint Venture ~ 70%

The Coperhagen Mo 27.5%
Construction Group

AiE Tarmac/Lamg G g

e Tarmac g T

Mill Lane

Off Watling Street
Shenstone
Staffordshire

_ Englang

Pytchley Maintenance Compound
Pegasus Court

Kettering South Business Park
Kettering

Northamptonshire

England

Refshalevej 147

PO Box 192C
1023 Copenhagen

Denmark

Ahg-lesey

_ North Wales

Manchester A'ifpoi'tu )
Manchester
England
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Carillion plc
Shareholder Information

Dividends

Dividends are normally paid twice a year. The proposed final
dividend in respect of the year to 31 December 2001 will be
payable on 28 june 2002 tc those shareholders on the register
on 3 May 2002,

The Directors have resolved to no longer offer the scrip dividend
alternative, with immediate effect. The Roard believes this to be
in the best interests of the Company as it will avoid the dilutive
effect of issuing new shares under the scrip dividend scheme.

A dividend reinvestment plan (DRIP} will however be offered
commencing with the 2001 final dividend. The DRIP differs from
the scrip dividend scheme in that no new shares are issued to
shareholders, rather existing shares are purchased in the market
with dividend monies. Details including information en how
fractional entitlements will be dealt with will be sent

to shareholders in due course.

Results
Half year to 30 June 2002: announced 11 September 2002
Full year to 31 December 2002: announced March 2003

Shareholder enquiries

Lloyds TSB Registrars maintain the register of members of the
Company. if you have any queries concerning your shareholding,
or if any of your details change, please contact the Registrars:

Licyds TSB Reqistrars
The Causeway
Worthing

West Sussex

BN99 6DA

Telephone
0870 600 3953

Textphone for shareholders with hearing difficulties
0870 600 3950

Multiple accounts on the shareholder register

If you have received two or more sets of the documents
concerning the Annual General Meeting this means that there is
more than one account in your name on the shareholder register,
perhaps because either your name or your address appear on
each account in a slightly different way. For security reasons,

the Registrars will not amalgamate the accounts without your
written consent, so if you would like any multiple accounts
combined into one account, please write to Lloyds TSB Registrars
at the address given above,

Shareview

www.shareview.co.uk is a service offered by Lloyds TSB Registrars
that enables you to check your holdings in many UK companies
and helps you to organise your investments eiectronically.

You can register for this portfolio service which is easy to use,
secure and free as long as you have access to the internet

by logging on to www.shareview.co.uk and following a simple
registration process.

76 Sharehoider Information

Electronic proxy appointments

For the Annual General Meeting to be held on 15 May 2002
you may, if you wish, register the appointment of a proxy
electronically by logging onto the website wwwi.sharevote.co.uk

You will need your voting reference numbers (the three 8 digit
numbers shown on your form of proxy). Alternatively if you have
registered for a Shareview portfolio, log onto your portfolio at
www.shareview.co.uk and dlick on Company Meetings. Please
nete that any electronic communication that is found to contain
a computer virus will not be accepted,

Postal share dealing service

A low cost postal share dealing service is available through the
Company's brokers, Cazenove & Co. Details of this service may
be obtained by telephoning 020 7606 1768.

Auditor

KPMG Audit Ple
2 Cornwall Street
Birmingham

B3 2DL

Bankers

National Westminster Bank plc
16 Scuth Parade

Nottingham

NG1 23X

Brokers

Cazenove & Co.,

12 Tokenhouse Yard
London

EC2R 7AN

Financial advisers

Lazard Brothers & Co. Limited
21 Moorfields

London

EC2P 2HT

Legal advisers
tinklaters & Alliance
One Silk Street
London

EC2Y 8HQ

Internet

Carillion's website, www.carillionplc.com includes information
on Carillion’s activities, share price and financial performance.

Annual Report and Accounts 2001




0+
ccarillion

Carillion plc

Birch Street
Wolverhampton WV1 4HY
United Kingdom

T +44 {0)1902 422431
F +44 {(0)1902 316165

wwwy.carillionple.com




Designed and produced by Carnegie Orr +44 (0120 7610 6140,

Main photography by Philip Gatward

Printed CTD Capita on Zanders Mega Matt - a papef manufactured using 50% recycled de-inked fibre and
50% TCF (totally chlorine free} pulp, and is sourced from sustainable forests The paper has been awarded
the Nordic Swan enviranmental labet e low ecissions duting praduction.




